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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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RESULTS X4
Year ended 31 March BEZH=A—HILFEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
SR N | 2R ZF-AE SRR 2N
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Fi#ic Fi#oo Fi#c Fi#oo

REVENUE WA 3,112,264 2,318,317 2,502,920 2,117,353 2,703,899
Contract costs EHHA (2,862,972)| (2,065,285)  (2,204,176)  (1,997,722)  (2,599,673)
Gross profit ESl 249,292 253,032 298,744 119,631 104,226
Other income and gains Fofs e A B g 4,793 1,524 3,291 1,925 3,800
Administrative expenses FTBORH 3 (44,987) (108,232) (58,078) (46,248) (45,308)
Finance costs #E R (221) (235) (2,535) (4,644) (2,279)
Share of profits and losses of WA — &8 i 184

a joint venture = (18,333) (102) 9,651 1,767
Income tax expenses TR % (33,906) (26,269) (39,430) (11,630) (9,892)
PROFIT AND TOTAL A R A B A

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME e A B %1

FOR THE YEAR 174,971 101,487 201,890 68,685 58,314
Profit and total comprehensive BN G A H A w A

income attributable to owners e L G

of the parent 174,971 101,487 201,890 68,685 58,314
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION W L%
As at 31 March W=H=+—H

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RN | ZE B ZR-AE ZF-RE ZR-NE
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Fi#T F#r Fioc T

Non-current assets LG 125,801 14,248 33,872 29,495 72,713
Current assets EE 1,761,665 1,560,050 1,560,779 1,547,614 1,358,840
Non-current liabilities JEF A 43 271 858 253 113
Current liabilities B A AL 710,280 571,855 631,642 816,595 739,924
NET ASSETS A 1,177,143 1,002,172 962,151 760,261 691,576
TOTAL EQUITY Rl 23 B0 1,177,143 1,002,172 962,151 760,261 691,576
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

A0 B
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS LB E P
e Turnover for the year ended 31 March 2018 increased o #EHFHBEE-FZ—-LtE=A=+—HIk
by 34% to approximately HK$3,112 million from AF J 1 #72,318,000,000 ¥ 7T > HY N 34% %
approximately HK$2,318 million for the year ended 31 BEZZ-NE=ZH=Z+HILEERHDH
March 2017. 3,112,000,000¥ 7T °

e Net profit for the year increased to approximately o ‘ERNEHHFHEIKE-Z—-LE==1—
HK$175.0 million, representing an increase of 72.4% as H 14 B 47101,500,0009 7T - 372.4%
compared with approximately HK$101.5 million for the 24J175,000,000HIC ©
year ended 31 March 2017.

e Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 o #HEB R —)4E=ZH=+—H ILEENEKR

March 2018 amounted to HK8.75 cents (2017: HK6.53 FAR R R &S 75w (=B — b4
cents). 6.53%Al)
Revenue (HK$ million) Profit for the Year (HK$ million)
WA (H & #C) AERE A (AW T)
3500 250
3000
200
2500
2000 150
1500 T
1000
500 >0
0 0
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Capital and Liabilities

JBeAS B £1 4
As at 31 March 2018

RF—-NE=ZA=1—H

[ Other liabilities
HoAth £ %

I Capital and reserves

A RSkt
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
F 0% W
Dear Shareholders, BAPLER

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Able Engineering Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, which, together with its subsidiaries, is referred to

as the “Group”), I am delighted to report the annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the Group was engaged in the
contract works business, which mainly comprised building
construction and repair, maintenance, alteration and addition
(“RMAA”) works in Hong Kong. The Group maintained
a stable gross profit level with a decrease in administrative
expenses. Thus, the Group recorded an increase in net profits in

the year.

In the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s consolidated
revenue amounted to HK$3,112.3 million, representing an
increase of 34.2% from HK$2,318.3 million for the year ended
31 March 2017. Profit attributable to owners of the parent of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted
to HK$175.0 million, representing an increase of 72.4% from
HK$101.5 million for the corresponding year ended 31 March
2017. Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year were
HKS8.75 cents (2017: HK6.53 cents). The increase in profit
was mainly due to the combined effects of (i) the decrease in
the non-recurring listing expenses approximately HK$14.1
million incurred in prior year; (ii) the decrease in share of
losses of a joint venture of approximately HK$18.3 million;
and (iii) the decrease in the management fee paid to the
Vantage International (Holdings) Limited (“Vantage”) and
its subsidiaries, excluding the Group (collectively referred
to as the “Remaining Vantage Group”) after listing of
approximately HK$65.5 million.

The net assets value attributable to owners of the parent
as at 31 March 2018 amounted to HK$1,177.1 million
(approximately HK$0.59 per share), representing an increase of
17.5% (2017: HK$1,002.2 million (approximately HK$0.50 per
share)).

ANERFELRTRERARAR ([AAH] -
M E AT AR T AR ) 2 EF (] #
$ ) g ([HEAE]) > TR A AL BB E
FN\FEZA=Z+—HILFEZ 2ERL -

Bl

AR AR F AR TR > BHA
R EE T EE - B RE - do o
(TRMAA ) T58 o ARGH4F: T PR BFIKF
BeATBOE IR W - BT DAACSE 47 P9 845 138 v A1)
BTt

NBREZ2-NE=ZA=Z+—HILEE - K4
Mz 5 AW #53,112,300,00098 70 > IR E &
—tHE=H=1—H R4 Z2,318,300,000% 70
Him34.2% - ME_FZ— NE=ZH=Z1—H L4
BE o AR W] R A ) R REAG ;) £ 175,000,000
Wi WRE-R-LE=ZA=Z1T—HILFEEZ
101,500,000 JCHE N 72.4% o ASAF JE 2 43 B FE AR
B R %58, 75 (=B —L4E £ 6.53%ll) ©
i R 38 7% 32 B R () AR A A 2 FR AR M
17 B 32 #914,100,0009 6 B384 5 (i) A — A
BB E£18,300,000% ST HIRAD ¢ & (iii) AT
TRAGERARA R (T84 KI5 A R (R
BREAGEE > AR [T A4 ) s e A
i &I A #165,500,0008 62 55 A 2 o

NoF— ) E=ZH=1—H - BAR TG H A
¥ B %5 1,177,100,000 9 76 (45 B 490,599 76 )
— & —-b4E 1 1,002,200,000 % 75 (55 B £10.50 9
Je)) > ¥h17.5% °

Annual Report 2017-2018 FERS



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

z & I i # R

ACQUISITION OF MAN SHUNG INDUSTRIAL
BUILDING

On 8 January 2018, Bright Wind Limited (“Bright Wind”,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Group) entered into
nine provisional sale and purchase agreements with various
independent third parties for the acquisition of certain
properties (representing 21/26 equal and undivided shares)
located at Man Shung Industrial Building (“Man Shung”),
No. 7, Lai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon at an aggregate
consideration of HK$438.6 million (the “First Round Man
Shung Acquisition”).

In addition to the First Round Man Shung Acquisition, on
9 February 2018, Bright Wind entered into three provisional
sale and purchase agreements with various independent third
parties for the acquisition of certain remaining properties
(representing 4/26 equal and undivided shares) located
at Man Shung at an aggregate consideration of HK$180
million (the “Second Round Man Shung Acquisition”,
together with the First Round Man Shung Acquisition, the
“Man Shung Acquisition”). Completion of the Man Shung
Acquisition took place on 12 April 2018. The acquisitions
will provide a self-owned working space to the Group,
including (i) provide more area to cater for the Group’s future
development, e.g. a) provide enough working space for each
of its employees; b) set up its own training center for staff
development; c) set up project rooms for project teams to
carry out meetings with sub-contractors and clients; d) set up
a team focusing on Building Environment Assessment Method
(“BEAM”) for its projects; and e) set up an innovation and
technology team to carry out research and development on
building materials and building processes improvements;
(ii) provide space for setting up its own workshops to fulfill
license requirements from relevant government departments; and
(iii) reduce the Group’s exposure to future rental expenditure

increment.
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DIVIDEND JBe &

During the year ended 31 March 2017 and before the
completion of the reorganisation of the Company in
connection with the listing of shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Reorganisation”), certain members of
the Group declared special dividends of HK$600,000,000 to
their then shareholder, Profit Chain Investment Limited.
Such special dividends were paid during the year ended 31
March 2017. Investors who became the shareholders of the
Company after the listing date were not entitled to such special

dividends.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK5 cents (2017: nil) per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2018 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 11 September 2018, Tuesday. The proposed
payment of the final dividend is subject to the approval of
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming 2018 Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company and has not been
recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2018.

Based on the 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company in
issues as of the date of this announcement, the total dividend
amounted to approximately HK$100,000,000.

PROSPECTS

As mentioned in the 2017 Policy Address, the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) Government
would continue its effort in increasing the land supply and
number of residential units in the coming future to meet
the public needs. A new Task Force on Land Supply was
established to examine the different land supply options. The
HKSAR Government also introduced the “Starter Homes”
Scheme to provide 1,000 resident units in the pilot scheme for
middle-class families. The HKSAR Government has already
set aside a HK$200 billion for a 10-year public development
plan in enhancing the infrastructure of healthcare services

and facilities in prior year. Recently, to ease the pressure on

WREZ—LEZA=Z+—HILEE AL
AR R AR S A R A E (820 ])
LW AT Z AR EA(TEM ) S8BT - A4
B 2T a8 A\ B 3 E R B R Profit Chain
Investment Limited & ¥k 4F B JB & 600,000,000
Wt - ZERIBBCRABRE-F—LE=EN
ET—HIRERE A o B bl B R 2 AR 2 F
JBE R % 3 TR T A AR RS o

ARuZzERFERERKE T NE=Z]
=t —HIREERRZFE - \EA+—H (2B
=) A BUA O B R A M BB RR B R R,
FE I e S AL (% — LA ) o BERFEZR
SIS 2RO A 4 A BV B AT B R — AR AR R
FOBAE A (TR A4 R ) LIS Atk
D7 ARG - AR BB R I R AR = =
H=t+—HiER a6

WMAAHHARAECBAITYE R BT
2,000,000,000 B &H5E > B & 4888 49 45 100,000,000

Hij

SR LAERBE > WA IATBUE ([ F
W L ) SBOR I 7 3 e b R R A e
AL H B L AT O ) B DL 2 T R A
R o SHTAY [ A MR S B /N A B o S T AR
A TR - i TR I o A R I BT [R] BRF ] 4
[N B R EOR |37 5 55t 3 v 32 41,0004
B AP ESEIH o W IR BUN X4 TR
P 2,000 # T4 2oy 50 3 2 8 8 8 IR 25 A i it )+
R EBE R o AT > AW L BUN &
— AR BRI E ) > T 300008
JeAE R BB TS > DATC A 4 A AR e Bt
B~ ME A B RSO > DA S AR T A 5 g
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public healthcare services, the HKSAR Government has
set aside a sum of HK$300 billion as an initial provision to
support the second 10-year hospital development plan, improve
clinic facilities of the Department of Health, and upgrade
and increase healthcare teaching facilities. The HKSAR
Government is also planning to set up a Hostel Development
Fund to provide subsidy of HK$12 billion for the construction
of university hostels in this year. Together with the annual
spending on the Capital Works Programme of HK$86.8 billion,
public expenditure on construction is anticipated to further

increase.

In view of the HKSAR Government’s development plans, the
medium to long-term outlook of the construction industry
in Hong Kong looks promising. We believe that our Group
has accumulated ample experience and know-how to be
competitive in tendering these new projects. During the
reporting period, the Group has been awarded two building
construction projects from the Hong Kong Housing Authority.

Looking forward, we believe our actions will help create

reasonable return for shareholders in a changing marketplace.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to extend our
gratitude and sincere appreciation to the management and staff
members of the Group for their diligent work and dedication,
as well as to all business partners and all shareholders of the
Company for their continuous support.

Sincerely,

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
NGAI Chun Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND

R FHA B

At 31 March 2018, the management estimates the gross and RZF—/NEZA=+—H > FHEMNAFIARLER
outstanding values of the Group’s substantial contracts on hand  Z B K F B & 4 8818 e R 50 B 4918 15 43 731 40 %%
amounted to approximately HK$7,009 million and HK$2,941  7,009,000,000% JC % 2,941,000,000% J& o 4% &
million, respectively. Details of these substantial contracts are KA ZFEMERHEIN W T :

set out below:

Projects Contract value
¥H A RRE
HK$ million

ZF: ¥:n

Building Construction

B g

Construction of Public Rental Housing Development at Lai Chi Kok Road
— Tonkin Street Phases 1 & 2 2,590
FHHL A B RO R A L S 23 A SE R R B e vt ) SR TR

Construction of Public Housing Development at Eastern Harbour Crossing

Site Phase 7 and Demolition of Ex-Tung Wah Lung Kong Mrs. Fung

Yiu Hing Memorial Primary School, Chai Wan 516
R 1 767 06 9B 0 5 b R S 70 A JEARLAE B SR R e B S AR

576 65 T SRS T ) R R SR \ A /N R R ) TR

Construction of Public Housing Development at Tung Chung Area 39 2,460
SR 5 39 Ik o SEAEL A B 2 B w5 AR

Construction of Subsidised Sales Flats Development at Texaco Road 496

Pt R B BB RO H SR TR

Construction of Subsidised Sales Flats Development at Shatin Area 16, Wo Sheung Tun Street,
Fo Tan and Footbridge Improvement Works at Siu Hong Road, Tuen Mun 707
WS 168 K AR 0 B Bl B B % I H s 5 AR R T PR R AT A R AR AR
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND

Projects

¥ H

RMAA

RMAA

Hospital Authority Term Contract for Gascoigne Road Site
of Minor Capital Projects 15/16

PR e A LR o e 2 /N TR SE BT A 15/16

Note: Due to the nature of the contract, the contract value refers to our best it
estimation based on the relevant tender document.

Estimated Outstanding Contract Value — by Project Category

AR IEHA B 2 A% S RUE — 55 H B S

7%

B Building Construction
MR

RMAA

Annual Report 2017-2018 FE#RS

R FHA PR

Contract value
IR
HK$ million

A #8or

240
(Note)
(B aE)

DOHTR AR > A AR TR AN A B A

SCHE TS R A T o
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LICENSES

Jift et

The following table summarises the details of the major
qualifications and licences obtained by members of the Group

as at 31 March 2018.

Relevant Government

Departments or Public

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
Z & I g £ iR 8 R 22 a9

TEMEREMBEARADN T NE=H
Z— H A E BB S R

Organisation Category
A R BRI 1™ o 2 4% B b
Works Branch, Development Buildings C (confirmed)
Bureau e 7 (HERZ)
PR LH Repair and Restoration of Historic Buildings — —
(Western Style Buildings)
Hifs RABTA JRE s by (V5 )
Turn-key Interior Design and Fitting-out Works I
EXTE SIS I MR
Plumbing Installation II (Probation)
KA G )
Housing Authority Building (New Works) NW?2 (confirmed)
BREZE® 5 Gl TA2) NW2 (%)
Building (Maintenance) M1 (confirmed)
2 (fR4E) M1 (#E3%)
Decoration Contractors —
YIS i)
Buildings Department General Building Contractors —
By E — B R
Site Formation Works =
Wl B TR
Foundation Works —
HEE T2
Housing Society Building Works List 2
B B e B TR 23 -
Urban Renewal Authority Repair/Maintenance Works Upper Tier
T [ AR Hete RETR o]

Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department

R TS

Buildings Department

B %

Housing Authority
RRZEHE

Registered Electrical Contractors (Electricity Ordinance) e

AR AR (9 )

General Building Contractors

— e SR

Decoration Contractors

FAE R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following discussions should be read in conjunction with
the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2018.
BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group was mainly engaged as
a main contractor in building construction and RMAA works
in Hong Kong.

Market review

As mentioned in the 2017 Policy Address, the HKSAR
Government would continue its effort in increasing the land
supply and number of residential units in the coming future to
meet the public needs. A new Task Force on Land Supply was
established to examine the different land supply options. The
HKSAR Government also introduced the “Starter Homes”
Scheme to provide 1,000 resident units in the pilot scheme for
middle-class families. The HKSAR Government has already
set aside a HK$200 billion for a 10-year public development
plan in enhancing the infrastructure of healthcare services
and facilities in prior year. Recently, to ease the pressure on
public healthcare services, the HKSAR Government has
set aside a sum of HK$300 billion as an initial provision to
support the second 10-year hospital development plan, improve
clinic facilities of the Department of Health, and upgrade
and increase healthcare teaching facilities. The HKSAR
Government is also planning to set up a Hostel Development
Fund to provide subsidy of HK$12 billion for the construction
of university hostels in this year. Together with the annual
spending on the Capital Works Programme of HK$86.8 billion,
public expenditure on construction is anticipated to further
increase.

The Group’s Performance

For the year ended 31 March 2018, revenue from external
amounted to HK$3,112,264,000 (2017: HK$2,318,317,000),
representing an increase of 34.2% from that of last year. Gross
profit margin decreased from 10.9% for the year ended 31
March 2017 to 8.0% for the year ended 31 March 2018. The
increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase in the
certified contract works for the completion of construction
for two projects awarded in previous years and the revenue
contribution from the two new projects awarded during the
current year. The reduction of gross profit was mainly due to
the decrease in proportion of revenue contributed from private
sector in this year, the cost incurred for a private residential
project which was substantially completed in last year was
lower than that budgeted, and the commencement of certain
immature projects in this year that the profitability of which
had not yet been determined. In general, the gross profit margin
from public sector customers is relatively lower than that
from private sector customers as the credit risk and other risks
associated with public sector customers are commonly lower.
As of 31 March 2018, the customers for the Group’s substantial
contracts on hand were all from the public sector.
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Building Construction and RMAA Works

All new significant building construction and RMAA works
contracts awarded to the Group during the year ended 31
March 2018 are from the public sector. These contracts were set
out below:

e  Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats Development at
Texaco Road; and

e Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats Development at
Shatin Area 16, Wo Sheung Tun Street, Fo Tan and
Footbridge Improvement Works at Siu Hong Road, Tuen
Mun.

We expect the above mentioned jobs will be completed in two

to three years from the project commencement.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group did not have any new contract
awarded.

On the other hand, the Group completed the following
significant contracts regarding building construction and

RMAA works during the year ended 31 March 2018:

e Replacement of Collapsible Gates for Kowloon West and
Hong Kong Region (2016/17);

e Replacement of Collapsible Gates for Domestic Flats of Jat
Min Chuen;

e Installation of Stainless Steel Laundry Racks in Kowloon

West and Hong Kong Region (Phase 2); and

e Lower Primary School Development for Hong Kong
International School Association at No. 23 South Bay
Close, Repulse Bay.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains recorded significant increase
from HK$1,524,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017 to
HK$4,793,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018. The increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in interest income
from HK$1,440,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017 to
HK$4,468,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased from HK$108,232,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2017 to HK$44,987,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2018. The lower administrative expenses were
mainly attributable to the decrease in (i) management fee paid
to Vantage International (Holdings) Limited (“Vantage”) and
its subsidiaries, excluding the Group (collectively referred to
as the “Remaining Vantage Group”); and (ii) listing expenses

recorded in profit or loss in relation to the listing in prior year.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s finance costs
amounted to HK$221,000 (2017: HK$235,000). The decrease
in finance costs in current year was mainly resulted from the

decrease in average bank borrowings during the year.

Share of Profits and Losses of a Joint Venture

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group did not share
any profits or losses from a joint venture, Leighton-Able Joint
Venture (“LAJV?”), in which the Group has 49% interest, net
of tax, (2017: shares of losses amounted to HK$18,333,000).
The projects of LAJV had been completed while some contract

costs are yet to finalised with respective sub-contractors.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses increased by 29.1% from HK$26,269,000
for the year ended 31 March 2017 to HK$33,906,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2018. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in taxable profit for the year ended
31 March 2018.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to owners of the
parent increased from HK$101,487,000 for the year ended 31
March 2017 to HK$174,971,000 for the year ended 31 March
2018.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The capital of the Group only comprises ordinary shares.
The total equity of the Group as at 31 March 2018 was
HK$1,177,143,000.

The Group monitors capital structure using a net gearing ratio,
which is measured as total bank borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents, divided by equity attributable to owners of the
parent. As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s net gearing ratio was
N/A (31 March 2017: N/A).

Due to the combined effects of (i) net cash inflows from
operating and investing activities; and (ii) repayment
of bank loan during the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2018
amounted to HK$1,185,501,000, representing an increase by
HK$453,305,000 from HK$732,196,000 as at 31 March 2017.
Current ratio of the Group stood at 2.5 at 31 March 2018, while
that as at 31 March 2017 was 2.7. Current ratio is measured as

total current assets divided by total current liabilities.

The Group maintains sufficient working capital resources to
execute its contract works. The Group generally takes a prudent
and cautious approach to cash application and its capital

commitments.

Interest Exposure

At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Group’s bank
borrowings were all denominated in Hong Kong dollars and on
a floating rate basis. The interest rates of these bank borrowings
are determined by reference to the respective bank offer rate.
For the two years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group
did not engage in any interest rates and currency speculation
activities. The Group’s bank accounts were operated with

principal bankers in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Non-current prepayment and deposit

As at 31 March 2018, the Group recorded non-current
prepayment and deposit of approximately HK$114 million (31
March 2017: nil) which represented prepayment and deposit of
the acquisition of total 25/26 interest in Man Shung Industrial
Building.

Accounts Receivable

The Group’s accounts receivable represented the receivables
for contract works, which combined (i) trade debtors; and
(ii) retention receivables in relation to completed and on-
going contract works projects. Trade debtors represent progress
billing of work performed by us and the progress payment
certificates issued by and received from our customers. The
level of our trade debtors is principally affected by our work
progress and the amount of the progress payment certificate
received from our customer before the end of the reporting
period. Approximately 97% of the trade debtors other than
retention receivables for contract works as at 31 March 2018
were subsequently settled as at 31 May 2018 (31 March 2017:
approximately 95% were subsequently settled by 31 May 2017).
Retention receivables represent the retention monies required
by our customers to secure our Group’s due performance of the
contracts. Generally, the first half of the retention money is
released upon practical completion and the second half of the
retention money is released upon expiry of the defect liability
period.
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Charges on Assets

At 31 March 2018, the following assets of the Group or assets
of the Remaining Vantage Group were pledged in favour of
certain banks to secure the banking facilities granted by those
banks to certain members of the Group:

e Jegal charges over the Remaining Vantage Group’s

investment properties, which had an aggregate carrying
amount of nil (2017: HK$1,851,000,000);

e legal charges over the Remaining Vantage Group’s land

and buildings, which had an aggregate carrying amount of

nil (2017: HK$127,586,000);

e the assignment of the Group’s financial benefits under
certain contract works with an aggregate account
receivable of HK$220,143,000 (2017: HK$231,567,000);

and

e cross guarantees provided by the Remaining Vantage

Group of nil (2017: HK$3,580,000,000).

All corporate guarantees and securities provided by the
Remaining Vantage Group for the benefit of the Group were
released upon the repayment of bank loans during the year

ended 31 March 2018.

Contingent liabilities
Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities are set out in note

26 to the financial statements.

Capital Commitments
Details of the Group’s capital commitments are set out in notes

27 and 28 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS ON CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have any significant investment held as
at 31 March 2018 nor the Group has any plans for material

investments on capital assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS
Details of the acquisition of Man Shung Industrial Building are

set out in Chairman’s Statement on page 7.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 20 February 2017 (the “Listing Date”). Net
proceeds from the Listing were approximately HK$524 million
(after deducting the underwriting commission and other
expenses in relation to the 500,000,000 new ordinary shares
issued pursuant to the listing of share of the Company on
the Stock Exchange (the “Share Offer”)). According to the
section “Future Plans and Proposed Use of Proceeds” as set out
in the prospectus of the Company dated 26 January 2017 (the
“Prospectus”), the Group used the net proceeds during the year
ended 31 March 2018 as follows:
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Total At 523 137 386

As at 31 March 2018, the unused proceeds were deposited in
licensed banks in Hong Kong.
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PROSPECTS

As mentioned in the 2017 Policy Address, the HKSAR
Government would continue its effort in increasing the land
supply and number of residential units in the coming future to
meet the public needs. A new Task Force on Land Supply was
established to examine the different land supply options. The
HKSAR Government also introduced the “Starter Homes”
Scheme to provide 1,000 resident units in the pilot scheme for
middle-class families. The HKSAR Government has already
set aside a HK$200 billion for a 10-year public development
plan in enhancing the infrastructure of healthcare services
and facilities in prior year. Recently, to ease the pressure on
public healthcare services, the HKSAR Government has
set aside a sum of HK$300 billion as an initial provision to
support the second 10-year hospital development plan, improve
clinic facilities of the Department of Health, and upgrade
and increase healthcare teaching facilities. The HKSAR
Government is also planning to set up a Hostel Development
Fund to provide subsidy of HK$12 billion for the construction
of university hostels in this year. Together with the annual
spending on the Capital Works Programme of HK$86.8 billion,
public expenditure on construction is anticipated to further
increase.

In view of the HKSAR Government’s development plans, the
medium to long-term outlook of the construction industry
in Hong Kong looks promising. We believe that our Group
has accumulated ample experience and know-how to be
competitive in tendering these new projects. During the
reporting period, the Group has been awarded two building
construction projects from the Hong Kong Housing Authority.

Looking forward, we believe our actions will help create
reasonable return for shareholders in a changing marketplace.

EMPLOYEES

As of 31 March 2018, the Group employed 388 full-time
employees (31 March 2017: 344) in Hong Kong. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance and
working experience and with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. On top of the regular remuneration, discretionary
bonus may be granted to senior management and staff members
by reference to the Group’s performance, specific project’s
performance as well as the individual employee’s performance.
Staff benefits include medical, mandatory provident fund,
incentive travel, subsidies for education and training
programmes.
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B1oGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (“Mr. NGAI”), aged 55, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, has been the Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director since July 2016. He is also the
chairman of the board and the executive director of Vantage
International (Holdings) Limited (“Vantage”, stock code:
15, an intermediate holding company of the Company). Mr.
NGALI is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. NGAI has extensive experience in the
construction industry. He is responsible for the management of
the Board and the strategic planning of the Group. Mr. NGAI
and Mr. YAU Kwok Fai are brothers-in-law.

Mr. IP Yik Nam (“Mr. IP”), aged 38, has been appointed
as the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director
of the Company since September 2016. He is primarily
responsible for business development, legal and compliance,
and corporate governance affairs of our Group. Mr. IP has over
13 years of management experience through assuming various
management roles in companies in the United States and Hong
Kong. He graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University with a
bachelor of business administration degree in human resources
management in December 2002. Mr. IP further obtained a
master of business administration degree from Long Island
University of the United States in May 2004 and a bachelor of
laws degree from University of London in August 2011. Mr. IP
is the son of The Hon. IP Kwok Him, GBM, GBS, JP, one of the
independent non-executive directors of Vantage.

Annual Report 2017-2018 FE#RS

2 B v B PILN J E

PuAr g

B (TREAD - TR > BAAT
PEBBER - B H —F - AFE LR EESFEE
FERBATES - WA BBERERARAA (T8
51> e AR < 15 > AR Rl Bg — [H] o P O
F)MERE I RRTES - RS AARAT
RAZRTZEMN o BLIE A B R B B KL
B o A S TAT B S R R 4 T SR A ) T
M o B T BB Se A 2 L o

AR (THESe2E ) » =+ )\ > REF—A
FIARERE AN TR BEPTESR -
WEBAEARE B RR - BHRAGHEER
IR FH o FRATM K LB S
] 2 W) 4 B R A > RO 1 347 M A BRAE R o
PR FF AT RERFEE G RRIIRN
13N 70 B U5 LB T A LR A o AR
TRRPUAE T A BRI KB R A B
BAL R A R M BRR B R L
BAr o BT B B AT E
Bk B ORI B - &F R - KFAL)
5 o

21



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

22

z & I i # R

B R 2 3

B1oGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

o2 B v B DI M I

Mr. YAU Kwok Fai (“Mr. YAU”), aged 52, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since July 2016. He is
also the deputy chairman of the board, the executive director
and the chief executive officer of Vantage. Mr. YAU is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. YAU is responsible for formulating policy and overall
development of the Group. Mr. YAU has over 27 years of
experience in the construction industry and 14 years of
experience in the property industry. Mr. YAU graduated with
Bachelor Degree of Engineering in Civil Engineering (First
Class Honours) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in November
1990. He obtained a Diploma from the Imperial College
London in July 1991 and a Master of Science Degree with
Distinction in Structural Steel Design from the University of
London in August 1991. He is a Chartered Engineer and an
incorporate member of the Institution of Civil Engineers, the
Institution of Structural Engineers of the United Kingdom (the
“UK”) and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (“HKIE”),
a Registered Professional Engineer (Civil & Structural) and a
Registered Structural Engineer. Mr. YAU and Mr. NGALI are

brothers-in-law.

In addition to being a director of the Company and Vantage,
Mr. YAU was also a non-executive director and non-executive
chairman of Excel Development (Holdings) Limited (the
issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange, “Excel”, stock code: 1372, previously an
indirect subsidiary of the Vantage and currently known as “Bisu
Technology Group International Limited”) from November
2013 to August 2015. Save as aforesaid, Mr. YAU has not held
any directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years.

Mr. YAM Kui Hung (“Mr. YAM”), aged 59, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since September 2016.
Mr. YAM is primarily responsible for quality assessment and
project risk management of our Group. Mr. YAM has over
38 years of experience in the construction field. He obtained
a higher certificate in building studies from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic in November 1982 and a postgraduate diploma
in construction management from the Construction Industry
Training Authority in Hong Kong in October 1989. He is a
corporate member of the HKIE.
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B1oGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAU Chi Fai, Daniel (“Mr. LAU”), aged 49, has been
an Executive Director of the Company since September
2016. Mr. LAU is primarily responsible for building project
management and contract administration work of our Group.
Mr. LAU has over 25 years of experience in the construction
field. He obtained a bachelor degree in construction
management from South Bank University of the UK in
July 1993 and a higher diploma in building technology and
management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in November
1991. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of

Construction Managers.

Mr. CHEUNG Ho Yuen (“Mr. CHEUNG?”), aged 46,
has been an Executive Director of the Company since
September 2016. Mr. CHEUNG is primarily responsible for
project estimation, project sub-contracting and procurement
management of our Group. Mr. CHEUNG has over 22 years
of experience in the construction industry. He obtained a
bachelor degree in quantity surveying from University of
Greenwich of the UK in July 1998 and a higher diploma in
building surveying from City University of Hong Kong in
November 1995.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(“INEDs”)

Dr. LI Yok Sheung (“Dr. L1”), aged 65, has been an
independent non-executive Director since January 2017. He is
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
advice to our Board. He is currently the chairman of the
Company’s Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Dr. LI has over 30 years of experience in civil engineering and
education. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor of science degree in engineering in November
1975 and a doctor of philosophy degree in November 1980.
Dr. LI joined the Hong Kong Polytechnic as lecturer in
September 1984 and was appointed as the chair professor
of coastal and environmental engineering in January 2000.
From July 2000 to July 2007, he also served as the head of the
department of civil and structural engineering (renamed as
department of civil and environmental engineering in 2012)
of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. LI retired from
the position of chair professor in June 2013 and was appointed
as advisor to head of civil and environmental engineering from

September 2013 to August 2018.
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Dr. LI is a registered professional engineer. He is also a fellow
of the HKIE since September 1997. Dr. LI served on the
publications committee of the HKIE between 2002 and 2008
and was the chairman of such committee from 2005 to 2008.
He was a member of the structural engineers registration
committee panel under the Buildings Department in 2004
and 2005. He was appointed as an independent reviewer by
the then Territory Development Department for the Central
Reclamation Phase III Project in 2003.

Ms. MAK Suk Hing (“Ms. MAK”), aged 65, has been an
independent non-executive Director since January 2017. She is
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
advice to our Board. She is currently a member of the
Company’s Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee

and the Nomination Committee.

Ms. MAK has over 35 years of experience in education. She
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor of science degree in October 1975 and a diploma in
education in December 1980. From 1975 to 1997, Ms. MAK
served as the assistant education officer, education officer and
senior education officer for Education Bureau. She was the
principal of Tai Po Government Secondary School from 1997
to 2000 and the principal of South Tuen Mun Government
Secondary School from 2000 to 2008. She was a committee
member of the School Management Committee of the
Clementi Secondary School from 2011 to 2013. She has also
been a member of New Territories East Region of the Scout
Association of Hong Kong until 2017.

Ms. MAK is currently the assessor for Needs Analysis for
Aspiring Principals Programme in the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. She is also a member of the Executive Committee
of Rural Training College Alumni Association Limited.

In addition to being a director of the Company, Ms. MAK
was also an independent non-executive director of Excel from
November 2013 to August 2015. Save as aforesaid, Ms. MAK
has not held any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years.
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Ms. LEUNG Yuen Shan, Maisy (“Ms. LEUNG”), aged
47, has been an independent non-executive Director since
January 2017. She is mainly responsible for supervising and
providing independent advice to our Board. She is currently
the chairwoman of the Company’s Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination

Committee.

Ms. LEUNG has over 18 years of experience in accounting and
finance and substantial experience in managerial roles. She
had worked in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for over 11 years
with extensive experience in auditing, corporate finance, and
corporate reorganisation. Ms. LEUNG was then employed by a
private broadcasting company as the vice president of finance
in charge of its financial activities and a multinational artist
management company as the strategic development general

manager responsible for its corporate strategic plans and

policies from 2009 to 2012.

Ms. LEUNG obtained a bachelor of business administration
degree (majoring in accounting and finance) from Simon
Fraser University, Canada in May 1995 and a master business
administration degree in business management (majoring in

international management) from University of London, UK in

November 1997.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NG Kai Chow, aged 49, joined the Group in October
2002, is currently a project manager of Able Engineering
Company Limited and is responsible for provision of building
project management and contract administration works of
certain contracts. Mr. Ng has over 30 years of experience
in the construction industry. He obtained a postgraduate
diploma in construction law and arbitration in October 2005
from the University of Hong Kong School of Professional and
Continuing Education and a diploma in construction from the

College of Estate Management of the UK in August 2001.
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Mr. CHEUNG Pak Lun, aged 39, joined the Group in
September 2002, is currently a project manager of Able
Engineering Company Limited and is mainly responsible
for provision of building project management and contract
administration works of certain contracts. Mr. Cheung has
over 13 years of experience in the construction industry, in
particular, working experience in private and public residential
and institutional developments. He obtained a bachelor degree
in building engineering and management from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic in November 2002.

Mr. FUNG Siu Hang, aged 40, joined the Group in May 2007,
is currently a quantity surveying manager of Able Engineering
Company Limited and is mainly responsible for provision of
quantity surveying services. Mr. Fung has over 18 years of
experience in the construction industry, in particular, quantity
surveying experience in both private and public construction
projects. He obtained a higher diploma in building studies from
the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education in July 2004
and a bachelor of science degree in building economics and

quantity surveying from Heriot Watt University of the UK in
July 2008.

Mr. WONG Chun Man, aged 44, joined the Group in July
2010, is currently a quantity surveying manager of Able
Engineering Company Limited and is mainly responsible
for provision of quantity surveying services. Mr. Wong has
over 15 years of experience in the construction field, in
particular, quantity surveying experience in private and public
construction projects. He obtained a bachelor of science
degree in quantity surveying from the City University of Hong
Kong in November 1995. Mr. Wong is a member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors. He is also a registered professional

surveyor in quantity surveying under the Surveyors Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 417 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Mr. AU Man Yiu (“Mr. AU”), aged 35, joined the Group in
March 2018, is currently the company secretary (the “Company
Secretary”) of the Company and financial controller of the
Group. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the financial
matters and company secretarial affairs of our Group. Mr. AU
has 11 years of experience in the field of auditing, financial
reporting, corporate finance, investor relations and company
secretary. Mr. AU worked for an international accountancy
firm as senior auditor. He also worked for a company listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange as senior finance
manager and vice director of corporate finance and investor
relations. Prior to joining the Group in March 2018, Mr. AU
worked for a consultancy firm as project manager. Mr. AU
received his bachelor’s degree in Accounting and Finance from
The University of Exeter in 2006. He is also a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Corporate governance is the system by which the Company
is directed and controlled. The board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) is fully aware of its importance to the
shareholders and has developed a rigorous system of checks
and balances which allows management to respond to the
strategic directions approved by the Board. The Board believes
that a well-balanced corporate governance system enables
the Company to achieve business excellence and fulfill the

Company’s mission.

This report describes the Company’s corporate governance
practices and structures that were in place during the financial
year ended 31 March 2018, with specific reference to the
principles and guidelines of the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In developing and reviewing
its corporate governance policies and practices, the Company
has sought to adopt a balanced approach.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE
In the opinion of the directors of the Company (“Director(s)”),

the Company complied with the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.
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THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company, and the Directors are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs and overseeing the
achievement of strategic plans to enhance shareholders’ value.
The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function
as required under the CG Code. The Board is responsible for all
major aspects of the Company’s affairs, which includes:

e formulating key policy matters, overall strategic plans and
directions, and objectives of the Group;

® monitoring the performance of the management of the
Group;

e implementing and monitoring an effective framework of
internal controls and risk management;

®  monitoring material transactions (including, in particular,
those which may involve conflicts of interest);

e  approving interim reports, annual reports, announcements
and considering dividend policy;

e ensuring the Company has good corporate governance
and review and monitor its policies and practices
on compliance with applicable legal and regulatory
requirements; and

e approving and monitoring other significant financial and

operational matters.

Responsibilities over day-to-day operations are delegated to the

management under the leadership of the Executive Directors.
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As at 31 March 2018, the Board is composed of nine Directors,
including six Executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”).

Executive Directors:

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (Chairman)

Mr. IP Yik Nam (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. YAU Kwok Fai

Mr. YAM Kui Hung

Mr. LAU Chi Fai, Daniel

Mr. CHEUNG Ho Yuen

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. LI Yok Sheung

Ms. MAK Suk Hing

Ms. LEUNG Yuen Shan, Maisy

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on pages 21 to 27 of this annual
report. A List of Directors and their Role and Function is

available on the Company’s website.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the Group’s business. All Directors have
separate and independent access to the advice and services of
the senior management and the Company Secretary, with a
view to ensuring that board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. When needed and upon making
request to the Board, the INEDs may obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense in carrying out
their duties.

The Company has arranged for insurance cover in respect of
legal action against the Directors and its officers. The insurance
coverage is reviewed annually to ensure that the Directors and

officers are adequately protected against potential liabilities.
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The INEDs

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three INEDs with at least one
INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required in Rules 3.10(1) and (2). The Company has also met
the requirement of at least one-third of members of the Board
being INEDs as required by Rules 3.10A.

The three INEDs of the Company are persons of high caliber,
with academic and professional qualifications in the fields
of engineering, education and accounting and finance. With
their experience gained from various sectors, they provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and

responsibilities of the Board.

The INEDs are appointed for a fixed specific term. The
Board considers that all of the INEDs are independent and
has received from each of them the annual confirmations of
independence required by the Listing Rules. The Company has
assessed the independence and considers all of the INEDs to be
independent based on the independence criteria in accordance
with the requirements in Listing Rules, their non-involvement
in the daily operation and management of the Group and the
absence of any relationships which will interfere with the

exercise of their independent judgment.

The Company confirms that year of service of all INEDs is less
than 9 years.

Each of Dr. LI, Ms. MAK, Ms. LEUNG has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular
Board meetings for next year are scheduled approaching the end
of each calendar year in order to facilitate the Directors to plan
for attendance of the meetings. Meetings will also be convened,

as and when required, to deal with ad hoc issues.

Any Director who is not able to present physically may
participate at any Board meeting through electronic means of
communication, such as conference telephone or other similar
communication equipment, in accordance with the Articles of

Association of the Company (the “Articles”).

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14
days in advance, and reasonable notice is given for other Board
meetings. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the
Board to prepare the meeting notice and agenda. Each Director
may include any item in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied
by meeting papers with sufficient and reliable information,
are sent to each Director not less than 3 days before the date
of a Board meeting to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on the matters to be discussed, except where a Board
meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to consider any

urgent ad hoc matter.

Minutes of Board meetings are recorded in sufficient details
regarding the matters considered by the Board at the meeting
and decisions reached. Draft minutes of board meetings are
circulated to the Directors for comments and the signed
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and open for

inspection to any Director on request.
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Each Director is expected to give sufficient time and attention T % % % T 45 T /2 4 09 157 [ R0RS Jg 0l B AR 24
to the affairs of the Company. The individual attendance ®F#% - FEFHLELWHAHNE-F—)FE=H
records of each Director at the general meetings of the Board =Z=1T—HREFFEEFGZEGHBREREN
and the Board Committees for the Listing Date to 31 March Il & d sk pn F -

2018 are set out below:

Directors No. of Meetings Attended/
EH No. of Meetings held during the Director’s Tenure of Office
TSI R R R SR e R
Remuneration Audit  Nomination Chairman
Board  Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee ~ and INEDs AGM

F R L SR
wEE  HFMZAT  ERZAE  RAZAG RAER BFRE

Executive Directors AT HE S

Mr. NGAI Wik 44 NARER  NARER 111 11 1/1
Mr. IP Ehetk 44 N/ADER  NABEWE  NASEH  NASEH 1/1
Mr. YAU e 4/4 33 NAREK  NAREKH  NAREH 11
Mr. YAM fEed: 44 NARER  NARER O NARER  NARER 11
Mr. LAU B 44 N/AKRER  NASREH  NASEH  NASEH 11
Mr. CHEUNG Rk 44 NABMER  NASER  NARER  NASER 1/1
INEDs L = Ky

Dr. LI Fit: 4/4 33 4/4 11 11 11
Ms. MAK %4t 4/4 303 4/4 11 111 111
Ms. LEUNG #ht 4/4 3/3 4/4 111 11 11
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment and succession of Directors and assessing the
independence of INEDs. The appointment of INEDs adheres
to the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board, through the Nomination
Committee set up in January 2017, reviews from time to time
its own structure, size and composition to ensure that it has a
balance of appropriate expertise, skills and experience for the

needs of the businesses of the Group.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. The
Board also adopted a board diversity policy in January 2017 to
set out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board members.
A summary of the Company’s Board Diversity Policy is set out
in the sub-section “Nomination Committee” under the section

“BOARD COMMITTEES” in this report.

The term of office of each of the Directors (including the
INEDs) has been fixed for a specific term for not more than
three years. They are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with the Articles, at least one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation and shall
be eligible for re-election and reappointment at each annual
general meeting provided that each Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Any new
Director so appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
new Director so appointed as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the first annual general meeting
of the Company after his appointment and be eligible for re-

election at such meeting.
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At the forthcoming AGM to be held on 31 August 2018, Dr.
LI, Mr. NGAI and Mr. YAM will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. Details with respect to the

candidates standing for election as Directors are set out in the
AGM circular to shareholders.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of
the Company are separately performed by Mr. NGAI and Mr.
[P, respectively. This segregation ensures a clear division of the
Chairman’s responsibilities for the management of the Board
and the CEQO’s responsibilities for the day-to-day management
of the Company’s business.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the
Board, and ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at board meetings and that Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner. The Chairman has an additional or casting vote in the

event of an equality of votes on any matter to be decided by the
Board.

The CEO is appointed by the Board and is responsible for
providing leadership for the management, implementing and
reporting to the Board on the Group’s strategy, overseeing
the day-to-day operations of the Group and providing all such
information to the Board as is necessary to enable the Board to

monitor the performance of the management.

According to the code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Chairman met with the INEDs of the Company for once
without the presence of the management and the other
Executive Directors during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the

Company’s affairs.

Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee has been established on
18 January 2017 with specific written terms of reference
stipulating its authorities and duties, which are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee comprised of
the three INEDs, namely Dr. LI, Ms. MAK and Ms. LEUNG.
Ms. LEUNG is currently the chairwoman of the Audit
Committee. Ms. LEUNG possesses the appropriate accounting

qualifications and experiences in financial matters.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review
the consolidated financial statements and the auditor’s report,
and to monitor the integrity of the consolidated financial
statements. It also assists the Board to oversee risk management
and internal control systems and internal and external audit

functions.
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The Audit Committee holds regular meetings at least twice a
year and they also meet with the Company’s external auditor
at least twice a year to discuss the audit plan and to review the
Company’s reports and accounts. During the year ended 31
March 2018, the Audit Committee held four meetings and the
primarily works performed by the Audit Committee are, among

others:

e the discussion with the external auditor on the nature
and scope of the audit and reporting obligations before
commencement of audit;

e review of the audited accounts and final results
announcement of the Company and the Group;

e review of the accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Company and the Group;

e review of and recommend the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor;

e approval of the internal audit and external audit report;

e set up “Policy on Provision of Non-audit Services by the
Group’s External Auditor and its Associates” and review
proposed non-audit services;

e review of the engagement, services provided and
remuneration of the external auditor and their
independence;

e review of the effectiveness of the internal and external
audit function;

e review and monitor the effectiveness of the financial
reporting function, internal control system and the risk
management system of the Group; and

e review of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

It is confirmed that there is no disagreement between the Board
and the Audit Committee’s view on the re-appointment of
external auditor, and they both have agreed to recommend the
re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s external
auditor for the ensuing year at the 2018 AGM of the Company.
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The Company’s Remuneration Committee has been established
on 18 January 2017 with specific written terms of reference
stipulating its authorities and duties, which are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and consists
of a majority of INEDs. The purpose of the Remuneration
Committee is to set policy on Executive Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and for fixing remuneration
packages for all Directors and senior management.

The main responsibility of the Remuneration is to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structuring for Directors and senior management and their
remuneration package with reference to the Group’s corporate
goals and strategies. As at 31 March 2018, the Remuneration
Committee is made up of the three INEDs, namely Dr. LI, Ms.
MAK, Ms. LEUNG, and one Executive Director, namely Mr.
YAU. Dr. Ll is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year
to review the remuneration of each Director and make
recommendations to the Board. During the year ended
31 March 2018, the Remuneration Committee held three
meetings. The major works performed by the Remuneration
Committee are, among others:

e approved the contract/letter of appointments entered into
between the Company and individual Director(s);

e review of and make recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for remuneration of the Directors and
senior management;

e review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of individual Director and senior
management; and

e review of the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee.

Executive Directors and certain senior management of the
Company are entitled to discretionary performance related
bonus payments which are determined with reference to the
Group’s operating results and their respective individual
performance. No Director involved in the determination about
his own remuneration. Particulars of the remuneration payable
to each Director for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out
in note 9 to the financial statements of this annual report.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the senior management (excluding the

Directors) by band for the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out
below:

BT R AL

AL A S AR 7 I AP RSO B 1.5 - AT 31 i
FAGEEE (A BEEER)RREZF - )FE=H
= H kAR BRI AL -

Number of individuals

Within the band of F0 4 Pt N
Nil to HK$2,000,000 WL £2,000,000% 0

HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 2,000,001 % 76 £ 4,000,000% 7C

HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 4,000,001 #7C %6,000,000% 7T 1

Nomination Committee

The Company’s Nomination Committee has been established
on 18 January 2017 with specific written terms of reference
stipulating its authorities and duties, which are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and consists
of a majority of INEDs.

As at 31 March 2018, the Nomination Committee is made up
of the three INEDs, namely Dr. LI, Ms. MAK, Ms. LEUNG, and
one Executive Director, namely Mr. NGAI. Mr. NGALI is the

chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The major duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board at
least annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board, identifying individuals suitably and
qualified to become Directors and making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships. The Nomination Committee meets at least once
a year. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting. The major works performed by

the Nomination Committee were, among others:

e review of the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors;

e  assess the independence of INEDs;

e review of contribution of Directors;

e review of and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors;

e review of the Board Diversity Policy and monitor its
implementation; and

e review of the terms of reference of the Nomination

Committee.

Board Diversity Policy

The “Board Diversity Policy” sets out the approach to achieve
diversity of the Board. It is believed that a truly diverse board
will include and make good use of differences in the skills,
background, experience, knowledge, expertise and other
qualities of members of the board. These differences will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition
of the Board. All appointments of directors will be based on
merit and the Nomination Committee will review the Board
composition by considering the benefits of all aspects of

diversity.
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An analysis of the current Board composition, classified into — BiRFEE S5 & W ALK (A R AT F

different aspects, is set out in the following chart:

Aspects Board Composition

L) HHARAR

Male Female
9 %
(7 (2)

Gender
i

Executive Independent Non-executive

4 Bkt
(6) (3)

Designation

Rfi

Age group ) 45.54 55-64 0574
AR (1) 4 ) )

Secondary
k Undergraduate Postgraduate

KEAH/AY KEAMDL
() )

Educational background or below
B HERNT
)

‘ Engineering & ‘ o Account &
o i o o Education ‘ Construction & engineering '
Skillsfindustry experience & administration administration education Finance

i/t RER - NERAH FHRAH i TATRRHE ARERLE it ki H

(2) (1) (1) (1)

Construction, property Management &

No. of directorship with other listed

companies in past 3 years 0 1 1
BE=AE e (6) 2) (1)
Ll w2 A WA

() Number of respective Directors () HHRESEHH
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The “Board Diversity Policy” shall be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee, as appropriate and at least annually,
to ensure its effectiveness. Considered the current business
needs of the Group, the Nomination Committee considers
that the existing members of the Board have a diverse range of

experience and professional expertise.

DIRECTOR’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT AND INDUCTION

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. The Company provides all
members of the Board with monthly updates on the Group’s
development.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. The Company continues its effort in providing
updates on the changes in the relevant regulatory requirements
applicable to the Group from time to time and recommending
relevant seminars/conferences/forums and internal briefing

sessions to the Directors as and when appropriate.
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The Directors acknowledge the need for continuous
professional development and they confirmed that they have
complied with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during
the year. All Directors are required to provide the Company
with the records of the training they received annually.
According to the records maintain by the Company, all
Directors pursued continuous professional development during

the year and relevant details are set out below:

Name of Directors HHLEH

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung By E
Mr. IP Yik Nam ECYIN Y
Mr. YAU Kwok Fai i IR M S A
Mr. YAM Kui Hung SR SEE
Mr. LAU Chi Fai, Daniel B ek
Mr. CHEUNG Ho Yuen TR IR A
Dr. LI Yok Sheung 2 L
Ms. MAK Suk Hing 2 L+
Ms. LEUNG Yuen Shan, Maisy 237

Remarks:
A — Attending seminars/conferences/forums/internal briefing sessions

B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials

All Directors had received a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction package covering, among others, the Group’s
business and the statutory and regulatory obligations of a
director of a listed company had been provided to each Director
before their appointment to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Group’s operations and business and is
fully aware of their responsibilities under statute and common
law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements

and the Group’s business and governance policies.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the

code of conduct regarding the Directors’ securities transactions.

Following specific enquiry made by the Company, all Directors
have confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Review
Period. Full details of the Directors’ interests in the shares of
the Company are set out on pages 52 to 70 in the “REPORT OF
THE DIRECTORS?” of this annual report.

The Company has also established written code on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for dealings in the
securities of the Company and its associated corporations
by relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information in relation to the Company or

any of its associated corporations.

During the Review Period, the Company has sent notifications
to the Directors and relevant employees reminding them of the
“black-out period” as specified in the Model Code during which
they are not allowed to deal in the securities of the Company
and its associated corporations at the relevant times. All
Directors and employees are also bound by corporate policies
of the Company to refrain from dealing in the Company’s and
its associated corporations’ securities if they are in possession
of any inside information of the Group or any of its associated

corporations.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young was re-appointed by the shareholders of the
Company at the AGM held on 1 September 2017 as the
Company’s external auditor until the next AGM.

During the year, the Company also awarded non-audit work
to Ernst & Young and its associates. Through the Audit
Committee, the Board monitors the non-audit services
performed from its external auditor and its associates to the
Group to ensure that the independence and objectivity of the

external auditor would not be impaired.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee
set up “Policy on Provision of Non-audit Services by the
Group’s External Auditor and its Associates”. Pursuant to
the policy, all proposed non-audit services of the external
auditor or its associates would be reviewed by the Audit
Committee before the respective engagement. Accordingly, the
Audit Committee reviewed the nature of non-audit services
performed by Ernst & Young and/or its associates and confirmed
that it gave rise to no impairment of actual or perceived
independence or objectivity of the audit work itself. The
Committee has recommended to the Board the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young as independent external auditor of the
Company for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2018, the remuneration
paid and payable to the Company’s external auditor, Ernst &

Young, and its associates is set out below:

Audit services FIH
Non-audit services: TR -
Taxation services BLE IR
Other services A R B
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is to support the Board by ensuring
good information flow with the Board as well as the board
policy and procedures being followed. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for advising the Board on governance matters
and facilitates the professional development of Directors.
Mr. AU, the Company Secretary, is a full-time employee of
the Group and his brief biography is set out on page 27 of this

annual report.

Mr. AU has confirmed that he has complied with all the
qualifications and training requirements under the Listing

Rules. Mr. AU is also the financial controller of the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognises its overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of risk management and internal
control to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records and the truth and fairness of the financial statements,
ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.
The systems are designed to provides reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material errors, losses and fraud, and
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s

business objectives.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with the
responsibility to review the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, covering all the departments and
business units to monitor, assess and manage various risks in the
Group’s business activities.
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During the year, the Group’s internal auditor conducted
systematic reviews of the Group’s internal control system by
using a risk-based approach and review the effectiveness of
the Group’s system of internal control against an internal
audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. The Chief
Executive Officer and any members of the Audit Committee
may instruct the internal auditor to undertake internal audit
activities of an urgent or sensitive nature. The internal auditor
reports directly to the Audit Committee and has free access
to review all aspects of the Group’s activities and controlling
system. Internal audit findings and control weaknesses have
been summarized and reported to the Audit Committee at least
annually. Other Directors are also informed of the findings of

=)

-4

and weaknesses identified.

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of
this report, the Group adopts the following four lines of defense

approach on risk management:

1* Line of Defense

B

kR I 2

B R

B R 2 3

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

2" Line of Defense

B

BT R AL
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34 Line of Defense
BRI

4" Line of Defense
S Bl

Focus £

Owner

EAAL

Major Measures

B30 )

Culture, Ethics and General

Behaviour

A~ Wl B AT Ry

All Employees
(Including Directors)
BT
(BHE#ESR)

o Conduct and Behaviour
requirements
TR RAT R AL
o Training and Promotion

BTV
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Business Operations

B

Supervisors and Management

EE R

o Internal Control Measures
P s e

o Management Control
BRI

. Training
£l

Audit and Whistle-blowing
it R

Oversight Functions

Ei R

The Board, the Audit Committee,

Internal and External Auditors

Senior Management, The Board
and the Audit Committee

A R R

and External Professionals

FitzHE ERE FHEHE - AHION
FathAsMR AL
o Financial Control g Internal Audit
s REE Ty
o Risk Management o External Audit
T e B Vil
o Compliance Check o Whistle-blowing Mechanism
AHEE SR
o External Investigation
ShERE
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Regarding the handling and dissemination of inside
information, the Company has taken appropriate measures
to identify inside information and preserve its confidentiality
until proper dissemination via the electronic publication
system operated by the Stock Exchange. Senior management
of the Company are aware that they must take all reasonable
measures to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent the
leakage of inside information of the Company from time to
time. They must also promptly bring any possible leakage or
divulgence of inside information to the attention of the CEO
and/or the Company Secretary, who will notify the Board
immediately accordingly for taking the appropriate action
promptly.

A whistle-blowing policy has been put in place for the Group’s
employees and associates of the Group’s business to follow
when anyone of them believes reasonably and in good faith that
fraud, malpractices, violation of business ethics or improprieties
that he/she come across. Further details about the policy are
available on the website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee, assisted
by the management and the internal audit function, had
reviewed and evaluated the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management system and internal control system for the year
ended 31 March 2018. The Audit Committee considered the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group
were effective and adequate. The Board also reviewed the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems through
discussion with the Audit Committee on audit findings and

internal control matters.

Both the Audit Committee and the Board were satisfied that
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group

of the reporting year are effective and adequate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communication with shareholders and
investors in general. The various channels via which the
Company communicates with its shareholders include interim
and annual reports, information on The Stock Exchange’s and

the Company’s websites, and general meetings.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s general
meetings where the Chairman, the Executive Directors of the
Board and the chairman of the Board Committees are available
to answer questions. Separate resolutions are proposed at the
general meetings on each substantially separate issue, including

the election of individual Directors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene special general meeting

In accordance with the Articles, any shareholder holding not
less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meeting shall have
the right, by written requisition served to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be
convened by the Board for transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do

so in the same manner.
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Shareholders’ communication policy JBe W 1% 2 e SR

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication #=F—tHFE—HT/\H » KA "M —EHIHK
policy on 18 January 2017 reflecting mostly the current {AEBUR » H B8R WAL & B w8355
practices of the Company for the communication with I o AN R]E M DL T A8 1 ] RS BB} -

its shareholders. Information will be communicated to
shareholders through:

e The Company will use general meetings as a tool to
effectively communicate with Shareholders with a
reasonable opportunity to pose questions to the Board;

e The Company encourages and supports shareholder o
participation in general meetings or to appoint proxies to
attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they
are unable to attend such meetings;

e Mechanisms for enabling shareholder participation will be  ®
reviewed on a regular basis by the Board to encourage the
highest level of participation; and

e Chairman of the Board, appropriate members of the Board ¢
committees and the external auditor of the Company
will attend the annual shareholders’ meetings to answer

questions from the shareholders.

AR ) DL JBE SRR B A 2 BB SR R A Y —
FIEAS > WA T RO — M-S BL | 1 #
PR
LAY S EEY T E TS N RPN
AE MR K > B AT ZIRAR AR S R €
lst;'2 3

A I I R 2 S - DS S5 D
IR A 2 A 5 K

EHGIN - EFEFLHGHGERE A
O3V Y BN A U R I R R Je SR 4 KT > DA
o] 25 Je SR A R Y

Right to put enquiries to the Board 1ol #5201 2 HE A

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board at  BHRARERB R KT L RN > m
general meetings or send their enquiries and concerns with ~ #HF 2N KEEEFEN - BEAAF LEHE
sufficient details to the Board at the principal place of business — S&MiBF » $5BHFE I H G U o

of the Company for the attention of the Board.
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge and understand their responsibility
for preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018, which give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs of the Company and the Group on a going concern basis.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, there is no uncertainty
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt

upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The external auditor of the Company acknowledge their
reporting responsibilities in their auditor’s report on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 as set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 71 to 77.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no change in
the Company’s constitutional documents.

On behalf of the Board of
ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
NGAI Chun Hung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company are pleased to present their report together with the

audited consolidated financial statement of the Group for the

year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and the provision of corporate management services.
Details of the principal activities of the Group’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, an
analysis of the Group’s financial performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators, a discussion on
the Group’s future business development and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group
are provided in this report and the “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” section of this annual report
on pages 13 to 20. Also, the Group’s financial risk management
objectives and policies are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements. All the above sections form part of this report of

the Directors.

The Group is committed to be an environmental-responsible
corporation with the aim to conserve natural resources
and natural environment. The Group has operated an
environmental management system which complies with
international standards and will continuously encourage our
business partners, suppliers and sub-contractors to follow the
same standards. Further information of the Group’s policies and
performance about the environment would be included in the
Sustainability Report of the Company to be published within
three months from the date of this report. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, there were no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that have significant impact on the business and operations of
the Group.
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RESULTS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 160 of this

annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (“AGM”) AND
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2018 AGM of the Company will be held in Hong Kong on
31 August 2018, Friday. Notice of the AGM will be issued and

disseminated to the Shareholders in due course.

To ascertain the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM
to be held on 31 August 2018, Friday, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from 28 August 2018, Tuesday
to 31 August 2018, Friday (both days inclusive) during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the annual general meeting, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 pm on 27 August
2018, Monday.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Under the Group’s internal control and risk management
framework, the Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with
the responsibility to review the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. Other than the financial risk
management policies of the Group set out in note 33 to the
financial statements, the Group is also exposed to key risks

factors, among others:

Business and market risk

Demand for services and products of the Group is cyclical
in nature and directly correlates with the level of real estate
development, construction activities, liquidity demands and
general economy environment in Hong Kong. The Group relies
heavily on public sector projects which by their nature are only
awarded by a limited number of customers who are normally
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR?”)
Government and/or various institutional bodies. There is no
guarantee that our customers will provide the Group with
new business. The Group’s business and profitability may be
materially and adversely affected by failure to tender for new
contract works, any material reduction in spending by the
Government or various institutional bodies on public sector
works and/or delay in awarding contracts of such works by the

Government.

Construction risk

The Group is exposed to construction risk in relation to price
fluctuation, duration of works, quality of work, environmental
protection and safety involved in the construction business,
which may adversely affected the Group’s profitability. The
Group tries to manage and mitigates these risks through
risk transfer, improve communication between project
teams with project estimation and procurement department
and implementation of management system which meets

international standards.
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Compliance risk

The Group is exposed to compliance risk in relation to various
rules and regulations, including but not limited to rules and
regulations in relation to construction labour, occupational
health and safety, environmental protection, contractor
registration and listing in Hong Kong. Non-compliance may
causes serious legal sanctions, material financial loss, or loss to
reputation and loss of business to the Group. The Group paid
high attention to the enactment and amendment of laws and
regulations which may cause legal risks to the Group’s business
and will arrange appropriate training and experience sharing
activities for relevant employees. The Group also launched a
safety promotion campaign “Safety ® MyHabit” in this year
to promote Safety awareness and invested in the provision of
self-owned safety tools to sub-contractors or suppliers in high
risk operation like lifting.

Risk on Reliance of Key Management Personnel

The Group’s success and growth depends on our ability to
identify, hire, train and retain suitable, skilled and qualified
employees, including management personnel with the
requisite industry expertise. Our Directors and members of
senior management, in particular, our executive Directors are
important to us. If any of these Executive Directors cease to be
involved in the management of our Group and our Group is
unable to find suitable replacements in a timely manner, there
could be an adverse impact on our business, results of operation
and profitability of our Group.

Business Partners Risk

The Group relies on third-party sub-contractors and service
providers in certain parts of its business. The management
realises that such operational dependency may pose a threat of
vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service including
reputation damage, business disruption and monetary losses.
In addition, some of the Group’s businesses are conducted
through joint ventures in which the Group shares control with
other business partners. The relevant risks include that these
business partners may not continue their relationships with
the Group, take actions against the Group’s interests, do not
work for the Group’s interest, undergo a change of control
or not fulfil their obligations under the joint ventures. To
address such uncertainties, the Group only engages/cooperates
with reputable and experienced business partners and closely
monitors their performance.
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Cyber and Information Security Risk kAT B 2 2 R B

Frequency of cyber-attacks like sophisticated phishing
campaigns and ransomware have continuously increased in
recent years. The potential threat of cyber-attacks is increasing.
Cyber-attacks may lead to loss of information, leakage of
confidential information, unavailability of systems and
disruption of operation that significant costs may be incurred
for data recovery and system restoration, and/or possible
claims. The Group manages this risk by implementing security
measures such as firewall, anti-spam and anti-virus protection,
and increase communication of cyber and information security

threats to raise staff awareness.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and the statements of
financial position of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements and the
Prospectus, is set out on page 4 of this annual report. This

summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 14 to the

financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March
2018 are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Particular of the movements in Company’s authorised share
capital and issued share capital are set out in note 24 to the

financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s article of association (the “Article”) or laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law

of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$574,485,000.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made donations for charitable
and other purposes of approximately HK$2,583,000 (2017:
HK$2,498,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, revenue earned from the Group’s five largest
customers for approximately 98% (2017: 95%) of the total
revenue for the year and revenue earned from the largest
customer included therein accounted for approximately 85%
(2017: 57%). Four (2017: Two) out of the five largest customers
are from the public sector. The Group has not entered into
any long-term framework agreements with any of these major

customers.

Subcontracting charges paid to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 14% (2017: 24%) of the
total subcontracting charges and material costs incurred for
the year. Subcontracting charges paid to the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 4% (2017: 7%).
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None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or the five
largest suppliers.

The Group recognises the importance of maintaining good
relationships with customers, suppliers and sub-contractors
to achieve its long-term business growth and development.
Accordingly, the Group has kept good communications
and shared business updates with business partners when

appropriate.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive directors:

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (“Mr. NGAI”) (Chairman)
Mr. IP Yik Nam (“Mr. IP”) (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. YAU Kwok Fai (“Mr. YAU”)

Mr. YAM Kui Hung (“Mr. YAM”)

Mr. LAU Chi Fai, Daniel (“Mr. LAU”)

Mr. CHEUNG Ho Yuen (“Mr. CHEUNG”)

Independent Non-executive directors (“INEDs”):
Dr. LI Yok Sheung (“Dr. L1”)

Ms. MAK Suk Hing (“Ms. MAK”)

Ms. LEUNG Yuen Shan, Maisy (“Ms. LEUNG”)
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At the forthcoming AGM, Mr. NGAI, Mr. YAM and Dr. LI
shall retire from office in accordance with article 112 of the
Article and/or the Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG Code (as
defined in this annual report) set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). All the retiring Directors, being eligible, will

offer themselves for re-election to serve for another term at the

AGM.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs
The Company has received from each of Dr. LI, Ms. MAK and
Ms. LEUNG an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 — of the Listing Rules, and the Company
considers all of the INEDs to be independent.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the Covenantors (as defined in the Prospectus) has
confirmed to the Company of his/its compliance with the non-
competition undertakings provided to the Company under the
Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in the Prospectus). The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under
the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with by the

controlling shareholders during the period commencing from
the Deed of Non-Competition and up to 31 March 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 21 to 27 of this

annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is of a duration exceeding three
years or which is not terminable by the employer within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

Annual Report 2017-2018 FE#RS

B R 2 3

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

H A AL

T B SR AT I e RO AR R b - B - RSk
T 73 T 0 L0 A0 0 385 1 12466 B B A B B 4 28
Sy A R 2w (T2 B 1) 2 b AR (1 kol i)
S0 1) b g i i s i S A A ) (O 8 AR )
B SFRIIRSCER A 4 3MIBAEH S - B BMEE S
RRE B A% S R PR OB A R L S IAT:

T S AT 3 0 e

MR LTS3 130 - A SRl
e R 2 AR B S R > 3R
TS B N -

A3 TR i

HIGHEN CE R TR AN AR - o
AP AR R AN B T B (R 8 R B BEAR ) A 4
PEBEAA B F AR o WL E AT EECHEM AR
L > MR B AT R H R R R 44
S Z A F kS A B R AR A 3 T R
AT T A AR o

o B v A A PR 2 e

A AR B 2 e i AR PR 2 R R R RO AR 4R i
P2 EELTH -

o g I £

A5 3 0 LA 4 ) s AT 24 0 T A
9 0 = 4 S O R WA — A 9 I R
5 (I A1 th 0 08 DA 0 2 ) B MR 25 )

59



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

£ 12 I i # B2 5 R 2 3
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HHIgRE
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION P

The Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the

financial statements

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Other than the contracts as further detailed in section headed
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” below, no Director nor
a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the Group’s business to which the
holding company of the Company, or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, at any time during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for contract of service with the Directors, no contract by
which a person undertakes the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business

was entered into or subsisted during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director and officers shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur in or sustain by
the execution of his/her duty or otherwise in relation thereto.
The Company has maintained appropriate insurance cover for
the Directors and officers in connection with the discharge

of their responsibilities throughout the year ended 31 March
2018.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

At 31 March 2018, Mr. NGAI’s son, Mr. NGAI Wing Yin, aged
over 18, is a director of Lanon Development Limited (“Lanon
Development”), Lanon Construction Limited (“Lanon
Construction”), Lanon Building Limited (“Lanon Building”)
and Lanon Engineering Limited (“Lanon Engineering”), all
incorporated in Hong Kong and engaging in construction,

maintenance and engineering contract works.

Meanwhile, Ms. WONG Chui Yee, Mr. NGAI Wing Yin’s
wife and Mr. NGAI’s daughter-in-law, aged over 18, is also
a director of Lanon Development. As at 31 March 2018, Mr.
NGAI Wing Yin holds 100% beneficial interest in Lanon
Development, Lanon Construction, Lanon Building and Lanon

Engineering.

The power to make material business decisions for the Group
is vested in the Board. Whenever the Board considers that
there may be a conflict of interest between the Group and
any Director, such Director (including Mr. NGAI who is an
executive Director, Chairman of the Board and a substantial
shareholder of the Company) will be required to abstain from
voting. Therefore, the Board is capable of carrying on the
Group’s business independently of, and at arm’s length, from
the business of Mr. NGAI

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates is interested in any business which
competes or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,

with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2018, details of the interests and short positions
of each of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in
the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)
as required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests & short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under provisions of the SFO); or required
to be recorded in the register kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO; or otherwise required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing

Rules were as follows:

Long Position in the Ordinary Shares of the Company (the
“Shares”):

Capacity and

Director nature of interests

g £ B B il 26 1 B

Mr. NGAI (Note) As founder and beneficiary of a trust

WA (Bfat) U A S WS SE YN

Mr. LAU Personal

Bl {EPN

Mr. CHEUNG Personal

RS {[iUN

Note: Mr. NGAI is deemed to be interested in 1,080,011,200 Shares

(representing approximately 61.31% of the entire issued share capital
of the Vantage International (Holdings) Limited (“Vantage”)), which
comprise (i) 6,250,800 Shares held by himself; (ii) 838,760,400 Shares
held by Winhale Ltd. (“Winhale”) by virtue of him being the settlor
of The Xyston Trust; and (iii) 235,000,000 Shares held by Fame
Yield International Limited (“Fame Yield”) by virtue of his beneficial
interest in the entire issued share capital of Fame Yield. Accordingly,
Mr. NGAI is deemed to be interested in 1,500,000,000 shares of the
Company held by Profit Chain Investments Limited (“Profit Chain”),
an immediate holding company of the Company, under the SFO by
virtue of his deemed interest in approximately 61.31% of the entire
issued share capital of the Vantage.
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Number of

ordinary

% of issued
share capital of

shares interested the Company
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Long Position in the Ordinary Shares of an Associated B E @B 2408 — #45 :

Corporation — Vantage:

Number of % of issued
Capacity and ordinary  share capital of
Director Notes nature of interests shares interested Vantage
AR B T BT
#Hf Miat By RRERR PR igilie ¢l JBe A 43 Lo
Mr. NGAI (a) As founder and beneficiary of a trust 838,760,400 49.84
Wi fE2 —fEFEHOL A R Z A
(b) Interest in a controlled corporation 235,000,000 13.96
B — vl E A
Personal 6,250,800 0.37
(YN
1,080,011,200 64.17
Mr. YAU (c) Interest in a controlled corporation 30,888,000 1.84
i et Bl — el g s a
Personal 8,448,000 0.50
il A
39,336,000 2.34
Mr. LAU Personal 300,000 0.02
Bl i A
Mr. CHEUNG Personal 240,000 0.01
R PN
Notes: Mt

(a) These Shares are legally and beneficially owned by Winhale, which is ~ (a) Ut 55 B #7 Hl Winhale % %2 X H 25 #F - I The
ultimately beneficially wholly-owned by The Xyston Trust. The Xyston Xyston Trustie & H#5 2 E HEH © The Xyston Trust
Trust is a discretionary trust founded by Mr. NGALI for the benefits of his oA BRSSO R oL M R REAE e R4 -

family members.

(b) These Shares are legally and beneficially owned by Fame Yield, the entire (b)  BCAFRAy b 45 B Bk B KB - EAFZ
issued share capital of which is legally and beneficially owned by Mr. M OEAT AT MBS i R E BB o
NGAL

(c) These Shares are legally and beneficially owned by Business Success (c) LS HiBusiness Success Limited i & M B %5 #E

Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is legally and beneficially B o AT Z R BT RA TS i S A i K
owned by Mr. YAU. WA -
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Long positions in the underlying shares of an Associated

Corporation — Vantage:

Number of share options

B R 2 3

TR R 2 1R BB B vb Z 4 AT — A -

B R 8
Transfer
between
At Grant  categories Exercise At
1 April during during during 31 March
Directors 2017 the year the year the year 2018
#
# #? R B RN\
R YN AR ARAR B =1
H WH—H N oF midE  =+—H
"000 '000 '000 '000 ’000
T T TR T T
Mr. NGAT Bk 4,500 - - - 4,500
Mr. YAU s 4,500 - - - 4,500
Note: The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the

cases of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Vantage’s

share capital.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Company and
its associated corporations had no outstanding share options

granted to the Directors to subscribe for the securities of the

Company and its associated corporations.

Date of grant

#TH

10/9/2015
L
A

10/9/2015
i
A

Exercise
period of

share options

Y B i
AT EEm

10/03/2016 to
09/09/2020
L
ZHTRE
=
AARH

10/03/2016 to
09/09/2020
=
ZATRE
i
AARH

A 2 Al 538 ) v e 2

Jiig IR HE -

Exercise
price of

share options

ik I i
AT
HKS$ per share

IR
(Note)
(Hi#t)

0.526

0.526
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES” above,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2018 was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their
respective spouse, or children to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2018, according to the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of SFO, the following
persons and companies (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in
the Shares and the underlying shares of the Company which
fell to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of the

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long Positions in the Shares of the Company:

Name of shareholders

JBe 3 4

Profit Chain
Profit Chain

Vantage
#AE

Winhale
Winhale

Braveway Limited

Braveway Limited

HSBC International
Trustee Limited

I 2 o B A B A PR A )

Ms. Cheng Wai Chun

N

WEZ L4

Notes

it

|

(a)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(c)

(d)

Capacity and

nature of interests

Sy Bl a5

Beneficially owned

A A

Interested in a controlled corporation

215 35 P e i

Interested in a controlled corporation

215 3 P e i

Interested in a controlled corporation

¥l ;R i

Interested in a controlled corporation
P ) 1 P RE 2

Interest in a controlled corporation and

interest of spouse
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Number of

Shares held

CER R

Z B H

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000
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B B 533 ok A7 B A& e it > L AL KA
H] (A2 7 2 g e AT BN B BRAM ) A A 2 v B
A A BB A e e AT AR 4 2 B ) B A6k 491 5 X VR
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share capital of

the Company
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75
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75
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Notes:

(a)

Profit Chain is wholly-owned by Vantage. As such, Vantage is deemed to
be interested in the 1,500,000,000 shares of the Company owned by Profit
Chain under the SFO.

Winhale Ltd. Is deemed to be interested in 1,500,000,000 shares of the
Company held by Profit Chain under the SFO by virtue of its deemed
interest in approximately 47.61% of the entire issued share capital of
Vantage.

Braveway Limited and HSBC International Trustee Limited are deemed
to be interested in the Vantage’s shares held by Winhale by virtue of
the fact that Winhale is wholly-owned by the trusts of which Braveway
Limited and HSBC International Trustee Limited are the trustees.

Ms. Cheng Wai Chun is the sole shareholder of Braveway Limited and
the spouse of Mr. NGAI. Ms. Cheng Wai Chun is deemed to be interested
in 1,500,000,000 shares of the Company held by Profit Chain under the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no other

person (other than the Directors and chief executive of the

Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares and

the underlying shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company

under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or who, as at 31 March 2018, was directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class

of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at

general meetings of any other member of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS B wlizs 5

During the year, the Group only entered into one transaction
with the Remaining Vantage Group. This mainly relates to
contract entered into by the Group in the ordinary course
of business, which contracts were negotiated on normal
commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis. Further details
are set out in note 30 to the audited consolidated financial
statements. This transaction also constitutes de minimis
continuing connected transactions of the Company as defined

in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group has joined mandatory provident fund schemes
(“MPF Scheme”), which have been registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its
employees (including the Executive Directors). Assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Pursuant to
the rules of the MPF Schemes, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions at rates specified in
the scheme. The only obligation to the Group with respect to
the MPF Schemes are to make the required contributions under

these schemes.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares was held by the public
as at the date of this report.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company had no

disclosure obligation pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 8 January 2018 and 9 February 2018, the Group had entered
into provisional agreements with various independent third
party property owners (the “Man Shung Vendors”) to acquire
25/26 respective shares in total of the Man Shung Industrial
Building located in Kwun Tong at an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$619 million. As at 31 March 2018,
prepayment and deposit amounted to approximately HK$114
million in total were paid to the Man Shung Vendors. The
acquisition constituted a major transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange and was completed on
12 April 2018. Details of the transactions are set out in the
Company’s circular dated 28 March 2018.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Please refer to the section headed “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - PROSPECTS?” of this
annual report for an indication of the likely future development

in the Group’s business.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance through its continuous effort in
improving its corporate governance practices. Information on
the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
is set out in the section “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT?” contained in this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REVIEW

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted by

the Group and recommended to the Board for approval.

AUDITOR
The financial statements have been audited by Ernst &

Young, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for

reappointment at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board of

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
NGAI Chun Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

EY:

To the shareholders of Able Engineering Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Able Engineering Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 160, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how

our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) B S 2 w1 R0 ()

Key audit matter

B Bk 7 it 29

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FRAPIME A7 B 05 Jon o L B G it 29

Construction contracts

#EG

Revenue and costs recognised for contract works
amounted to HK$3,112 million and HK$2,863
million, respectively, for the year ended 31 March
2018. Revenue from construction contracts is
recognised on the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the percentage of certified
value of work performed to date to the total contract
sum of the contract. The contract costs are recognised
by applying the percentage of completion to the total
estimated cost of the contract.
REEZZ-NE=ZH=1+—HILEERN - REH
TR e R e A\ R AR 43 i s %3,112,000,000 9 TG B
2,863,000,000% 7C © £ 7] B WA BR Al 5€ A 4 B i
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BERZERMBEEE AL - A RS TE SR
VIG5t B W) B A S8 A R o

Significant management judgement is involved in
estimating the total budgeted contract costs used in
the determination of the contract costs recognised.
Any variations in estimates on the total budget
contract costs will affect the contract costs to be
recognised.

1 T 7 SE P e R0 A TR R AR R S Y TSR A D A A
B O R R A BRI B o TG ) S SR B Al
FAEATEEAY - % € 5 BB PRl i & ) BLAR

The accounting policies and disclosures for the
revenue and costs of construction contracts are
included in notes 3, 4 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A B SR W WA BB AR B TR R B - R A
WL M3 - 416 ©

We performed the following procedures to evaluate
the budget contract costs of construction contracts,
which include staff costs, sub-contracting costs,
materials and other costs to be incurred for the
relevant projects:

FMBAT T TR - DLaTAl 2L A 0 B A TR R
A HPEFEHRAEMERGIBNE TERA - 48K
A~ AERE I Al R AR

o discussed with management and the respective
project teams about the progress of the projects;

SRLAR B g A ) XL L T K i I O

o tested the supporting documents of the
budgets on a sample basis, which include
sub-contracting contracts, material purchase
contracts and price quotations, etc.;
R A E o - BRESBERH - BEE
IF) B i 55 5

° understood and evaluated the Group’s process

and control over the payment of construction

costs; and
TR R AP AL A R R S A B R B
il s &

° compared last year budget against current year

budget or actual costs incurred for the contracts
on a sample basis.

Fih B D e 25 4 T B BROAR AR R SR SO 4 WD T 51 B
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to

any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE & % bl 5t 3% 51 &2 & W 5 3 e 7k I8 1 5 4T
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (%)

STATEMENTS (continued)

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant e
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used o
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of o
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content e
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding o
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. CHUNG Ho Ling.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

22 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR Loss AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

By 4t 2 B L Aib 2 i WEC A o

Year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - F—NE=H=+—HIL4FE/E

2018 2017
e 2iC: 2 e Sl S
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
A TF# F#x
REVENUE WA 6 3,112,264 2,318,317
Contract costs A R AR (2,862,972) (2,065,285)
Gross profit =y 249,292 253,032
Other income and gains LA B W 2 6 4,793 1,524
Administrative expenses FTBPH 2 (44,987) (108,232)
Finance costs sy g =4l 8 (221) (235)
Share of profits and losses of WAL — ] 7 A SR R A
a joint venture = (18,333)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX ¥ 36 i ¥ 1 7 208,877 127,756
Income tax expenses P A B BH S 11 (33,906) (26,269)
PROFIT AND TOTAL AR A ¥ ) B 2 T
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AR
FOR THE YEAR 174,971 101,487
Profit and total comprehensive income — BEA T F5H FH AL & F) )
attributable to owners of the parent e PN E: ) 174,971 101,487
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRA VGBS R A &
ATTRIBUTABLE TO JRE A 5 I ¥ )
ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 13
Basic and diluted (HK cents) LA Ko 4 (UL ) 8.75 6.53
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PosSITION

A MR R
31 March 2018 W ZFE—/NE=H=1"—H
2018 2017
ZR )\ e Sl S
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
A TF# F#x
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FE ) B A
Property, plant and equipment LE DR T Y& 14 3,725 5,801
Investment in a joint venture N—EEELERNRE 15 8,394 8,394
Prepayment and deposit TEAT 3K00E e 3% 4 18 113,641 =
Deferred tax assets R B IE A 23 41 53
Total non-current assets FRIR B & A A 125,801 14,248
CURRENT ASSETS WH) & A
Gross amount due from customers for BKEEZ&H
contract works TRE Sk A% 16 17,306 315,864
Accounts receivable JE W R 2k 17 530,482 475,705
Prepayments, deposits and T RIE - HaRk
other receivables At JE ek E 18 19,567 15,442
Tax recoverable A Wi [l i JEH 8,809 20,843
Cash and cash equivalents Bl& RBl &S HEY 19 1,185,501 732,196
Total current assets LBl B AR 1,761,665 1,560,050
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEM
Accounts payable JEAT R 23K 20 438,171 483,691
Accruals of costs for contract works FESHA 4 TR A 224,360 255
Tax payable B A A I 16,572 7,568
Other payables and accruals At JE A) 2k 0 I HE 518 21 23,864 22,259
Due to a joint venture JEAT— P A8 A 3k E 15 7,313 7,313
Interest-bearing bank loans A ESRAT B 22 = 50,769
Total current liabilities L A AR 710,280 571,855
NET CURRENT ASSETS V) B A A 1,051,385 988,195
TOTAL ASSETS LESS R
CURRENT LIABILITIES W B £ 1,177,186 1,002,443
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Z @& T i2 # R 8 R 22 3

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B IR DL A%

31 March 2018 R ZFE—NE=J=1—H

2018 2017
ZR )\ —E ks
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
A T F#o
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES e B £
Deferred tax liabilities A% JE A IE £ 23 43 271
Total non-current liabilities IR B A £ AR 43 271
Net assets & EE 1,177,143 1,002,172
EQUITY BE &
Equity attributable to owners BAR A H
of the parent A i 2
Issued capital EBITRA 24 20,000 20,000
Reserves Tt 25 1,157,143 982,172
Total equity HURE RS 1,177,143 1,002,172
NGAI Chun Hung IP Yik Nam
B2 b IR
Director Director
HHF HHF
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z & I i # R

B R

2 8

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQuUiTY

it Y IR S

31 March 2018 R ZFE—NE=J=1—H

Attributable to owners of the parent

B F A AR
Issued Share Capital Merger Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
CEAMA  BEE  EARRE  A0EE REER HaRESs
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T Tt Tt Tt Tt
(note 25(c))  (note 25(b))
(Hfik25(c))  (WFE25(b))
At 1 April 2016 REF—AENA—H = = = 19,209 942,942 962,151
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 BEWF & 2 1h
for the year Nt = - - - 101,487 101,487
Issue of new shares pursuant to IR AL
the Reorganisation Bk = 55,951 (36,742) (19,209) = =
Dividend paid (note 12) OB (L) - - - - (600,000) (600,000
Capitalisation Issue BB 15,000 (15,000) = = = =
Issue of new shares pursuant to WRIE 1 B8 4
the Share Offer BIwikb 5,000 545,000 - - - 550,000
Share issue expenses BT B X = (11,466) = = = (11,466)
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 R_Z—LE=H
Et-HRZE A
A—H 20,000 574,485% (36,742)* —* 444,429* 1,002,172
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 JE%iF KX 2 1H
for the year K] - - - = 174,971 174,971
At 31 March 2018 BB N\EZ]
=f—H 20,000 574,485* (36,742)* —* 619,400% 1,177,143
b These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * W% A RS A O B B IR L2 N W B o A

HK$1,157,143,000 (2017: HK$982,172,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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I I & # IR 8 R & 7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CAsH FLows

BBl ek

Year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE - F—NE=H=+—HIL4FE/E

2018 2017
e 22 R S o4 S
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
B it T#7x Fix
CASH FLOWS FROM REEHZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES B&ha
Profit before tax B A6 i ¥z Al 208,877 127,756
Adjustments for: WE 5 25 TE E AR R
Finance costs i3 9iil 8 221 235
Share of profits and losses of A — &8
a joint venture oE Xi=E) - 18,333
Interest income FLEWA 6 (4,468) (1,440)
Depreciation e 7 2,793 2,840
Gain on disposal of items of e - KRR
property, plant and equipment RHTE H Z Wtk 6 - (84)
207,423 147,640
Decrease/(increase) in gross amount Rk P2 AR IR
due from customers for contract works KA () 298,558 (152,362)
Increase in accounts receivable JRE WAL R 2k 288 n (54,777) (177,891)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TARE ~ %E R H Al
other receivables JRE Wik T B (1,758) (2,703)
Decrease in amounts due from the FEW R T
Remaining Vantage Group Z A 5 W Sk TE Wk A - 917
Decrease in amounts due to the FEATER T
Remaining Vantage Group Z A 4 W Sk TE R A - (37,347)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable REATIR R (W) (45,520) 66,855
Increase/(decrease) in accruals of costs for ~ MERF A& T2
contract works ARG () 224,105 (74,330)
Increase in other payables and accruals JH Al 8 Ak 5k T e R i e T B4 1,605 5,664
Cash generated from/(used in) operations B, () 284 629,636 (223,557)
Interest received [BA I PES 2,101 1,440
Interest paid e F B (221) (235)
Hong Kong profits tax paid AT R 13 A (13,084) (65,881)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEHR (H)Z
operating activities HEeRETH 618,432 (288,233)
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I I &% # iR 8 R & 3

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASsH FLows

HEOBLSRER
Year ended 31 March 2018 #E -F—NF=ZH=1+—HILFEE
2018 2017
e 2% 2 R S o4 S
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 F# T
Net cash flows from/(used in) WEEENE ()2
operating activities Bl&ema s 618,432 (288,233)
CASH FLOWS FROM BEEHZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BamaE
Additions of items of property, s
plant and equipment Weas K skt e H 14 (717) (2,427)
Deposit paid for the acquisition of property, FEUCIEY) 2
plant and equipment B B s il A 2 ¥ 18 (113,641) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEH3¥ - B &
plant and equipment WM I H P Ak - 84
Net cash flows used in investing activities FREEBHITHZ
Bl I A (114,358) (2,343)
CASH FLOWS FROM (i§E 37 =
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Bl&ia
New bank loans BT SRAT AR - 50,769
Repayment of bank loans PR BRAT B (50,769) (2,549)
Repayment of loans to the RGBT
Remaining Vantage Group Ve e = (22,509)
Decrease in amount due to a joint venture — JEff— ] & &A%
SIE A = (26,291)
Dividends paid 2t e - (600,000)
Proceeds from issue of shares AT A P A5 3K T = 550,000
Share issue expenses AT IR B X S (11,466)
Net cash flows used in financing activities RUEEBHZ
Bl S i B A (50,769) (62,046)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN Bla R Bl S
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B, (WA ) 453,305 (352,622)
Cash and cash equivalents FERZBLE R
at beginning of year S EY 732,196 1,084,818
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBHER
AT END OF YEAR B&%HY 1,185,501 732,196
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF Bl K Bl G
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R Z AT
Cash and bank balances Bl T AT B 1,015,501 732,196
Non-pledge time deposits JEHC A W AF 3K 170,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in BERBERIHZ
the statement of cash flows Bl 4 KB4 2 19 1,185,501 732,196
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
Z & I g #£# R 8 R 2 9

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oA 5 A e ik

31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Able Engineering Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 11 July
2016. The registered office of the Company is located
at Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The principal place
of business of the Company is located at No. 155 Waterloo
Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 20 February 2017 (the “Listing Date”).

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were principally
engaged in building construction and maintenance

businesses.

Pursuant to the reorganisation of the Company in
connection with the listing of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange (the “Reorganisation”), the
Company became the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group on 12 January 2017.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), Profit Chain Investments Limited (“Profit
Chain”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BV1”), is the immediate holding company of
the Company; Vantage International (Holdings) Limited
(“Vantage”), a company incorporated in Bermuda and
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, is the
intermediate holding company of the Company; and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Winhale
Ltd., a company incorporated in the BVI.

Il

2 ) AR R

ERIBERARAT B F—NELAH
T H OB R A SOL R R B AR A
A o AN\ ] B EE M AL R Clifron House,
75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands o A2 7] Al 1 2 4%
BN AW IR IURESE B AT € 1 15558 -

AT B R =R —CEZA S+ H (T ki
HOBI ) 7 75 9 1B 6 28 5 B A PR 2 T (T 086 28
Bt 1) AR b o

TRASEEFE > Aoy W) B JL WA I 4 W] (e 2 [ AR
S ) B A TR AR -

38 A O W) A TR L B A W 22 BT B 2 FEA
(TEAL) > AR _F—LHF—H+ZH
JR A G B B IR I R PR IR A R

AATEHE([#EIF )RR > Profit Chain
Investments Limited ( [ Profit Chain | ) (7
e oG A T O T R (5 o A 8 B s 1) Rk
BROL) R ARy W] W BRI N W AR PR
AR (T84 1) O B 5E R RO - 3
U 38 B AR BTl ) A AR 2 ] A e e
H 3O AS O ) Y B A% B B A H) %% Winhale
Led. G 5% o 46k 8 il el M) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0 5 B B ik
31 March 2018 Z=F—NFE=H=4+—H
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2w ReEER(5)

(continued)

For the purposes of these financial statements, the A M B MENT » AN E LW EAF
Company and its subsidiaries are hereinafter collectively PNF A2 TAREE ] B 45 5 3 A
referred to as the “Group”; whereas Vantage and its Al (BRAE: I Ah) B LR e 8 2 [ 68 F &0 4
subsidiaries, but excluding the Group, are collectively [ |

referred to as the “Remaining Vantage Group”.

Information about subsidiaries £ BB A [ 2 B R
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as AL w] BG4 ml FF T
follows:

Percentage of

Place of equity attributable to
incorporation/ the Company
registration and Issued ordinary AN M RESR T 2P Principal
Company name business share capital Direct Indirect  activities
CRIV A T
Al H B 3K 5 b i CE AT A B A H% P REREH
Able Engineering Hong Kong HK$7,589,000 - 100 Building
Company Limited Ordinary construction
(“Able Engineering”) HK$11,600,000 and
Non-voting maintenance
deferred
LR TR R 7,589,000 78 - 100 MFEER
(TR 0 450 2% RO A2 f A7y (75 3
11,600,000%# 75
Able Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Building
Ordinary construction
RO A A Rl % 38 1B 10,0009 7T - 100 MEFEE
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Z @& T i2 # R 8 R 22 3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I 5 B B ik
31 March 2018 Z=F—NE=H=4+—H
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. A RsERER(5)

(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) HHWB AR Z2&R (4)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as K2 v T FE G A Al FEAE R (B

follows: (continued)

Percentage of

Place of equity attributable to
incorporation/ the Company
registration and Issued ordinary AN HEMRERE 2 Principal
Company name business share capital Direct Indirect  activities
HR ) WA &
R4 B35 Hb i CHAT I B A A% W R
Able Contracting Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Building
maintenance
BAREEA A B i ab: Y - 100 HEFHRFE
Able Maintenance Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Building
Company Limited Ordinary construction
and
maintenance
ZRAEEA PR T i W38 B 10,0009 76 - 100 MEFEsE
YIS
Able Building Construction Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Building
Limited construction
and
maintenance
ZREER R AT i W I 1 v T - 100 MrFgsE
VLS 5
Bright Wind Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Property holding
Wi JE A R A ] B w1 - 100 EFH
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company R R A LR AR A A E A ] AR
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected B2 [ AT B SE AR OB B Al AR SR T
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion HHHZ BORE Y o B 35 Erad 2 v 51 th il et
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other AR R - R ERRICR

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA5 A e ke

31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 March 2018. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to

direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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% S S B BB AR R A o it A ([ il
kbl 2B 1) A R A s R R B ([ A
IS I ) (R 3 A A o T R
Q) AW (A E e ) &t
BE) WA Rt R R W A ] R

% S T 5 OB T AR 0 PR M AR s A R -
BRI ([ 1) 251 - 1B 55 A 45 W
S > B BE TR EFEEN T8 -

EESEg 2

A P S AR LG AR A ) R L g 4 LA &
ZFNFEZHA = Bk BB
2% o Y O W) i SR A ) L T 4 4 ) Y
T (AR - MAKEZRS2 81
WCBE Tr S5 0 = B RE IS BB 7 Y
AT [T > ELA BB AT B A B D IR
SR T [T > SOV A AR A P 2
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Z @& T i2 # R 8 R 22 3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I 5 B B ik
31 March 2018 Z=F—NE=H=4+—H
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 HLLHE ()

88

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date

that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an

equity transaction.

AR ()

i AR 2 ) L4 B TR 42 B ) A8 i O B ST
OB A R RN - B FEAG A 2 7] S
R AR B RE ) - A SR [ 2% B T A R
B R DL - L4

(a) BLZBHE T R S ESE HNAR
ZHE s

(b) ARGRILA A 7] LR BT =2A HIRER] 2 K

() A B 3 S R B A AR S o

WEF g 2~ ) B A A ) W A B R R i AR )
B P — BOfrat BOR AR o B 2 W A
AR B U 2 FR AR BT A - g
B B AR 2 0% 5 PR T R A 1k 2 R 2 ko

AR 25 R Lt 2 THG WA I 5 AEL G 2 T i S
AER B A R R B R I R A > BB b
G| IR R SR A R A B B o FTE R
AR R R - B - A - B R
ACHR )R B 2 W [ 32 5 A A v B i 3 A A
AR H R 2R -

ik = B I 00 B S = R R P A JH
LI M B E > QA G B TR ARG LR
S0 B Ty A R o — [ B 2 D Y B
R i 3 A T (S JHE O 2% 4l e ) B e
152 G HIMR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA5 A e ke

31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of
the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in statement of profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to statement of profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for

the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12

included in Annual

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
Clarification of the Scope of HKFRS 12

improvements to HKFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
Disclosure has been made in note 29 to the financial
statements upon the adoption of amendments to HKAS 7,
which require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both

changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I 5 B B ik
31 March 2018 Z=F—NE=H=4+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 UL R0 R A 30 7 U U R
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING Y|

90

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKEFRS:s, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

AR [ SN S % 45 B R HE D DL SR
AL o A A AP RT RT B REA T A  h E

these financial statements. H :
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share- T e 56058 DRI EHZGWA R 2
based Payment Transactions' LHEN)
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments T BB S 458 TR R R4 [
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts' (BT A&) Gl — BB B
BHE [ EHIR)
HKERS 9 Financial Instruments' T e 0% 2HTH
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Bl BB I 0% HAMEZ R
Compensation? (7TK)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between FBMERECNRINR  RETEAFEAREELEZH
and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint b3 hig R HEENEG S
Venture? (20114 ) (#3T4)
HKFRS 15 Rewvenue from Contracts with Customers' BB 5 1558 KAZF B
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from BV BB 85 1558 BRI BR A ENE AR EF
Contracts with Customers' (BT k) GllpeTi
HKFRS 16 Leases’ FEHERENRGE A
HKERS 17 Insurance Contracts* it s e Al R
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or i@ R 108 AT R
Settlement? (3T K)
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and R ER REBATARAELEZ IR
Joint Ventures® (B7Tk)
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property! TGRSO (BT A)  HAREHE
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and (BB ERERERE SRS RBCE
Advance Consideration' ) - AR
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments® HE(EABUEREARER  FRREANIREH
&) - R
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS ZF-WERZEAE BT A MR B RIS 15 R
2014-2016 Cycle 28! BH RS E (R4 FREIN
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, ZE-IERFE AT BT R R 30 Ak
2015-2017 Cycle HKAS 12 and HKAS 23? BHZEEALE BRI 15 - Ak
RIS 125 R A A A
EIk) 2

adoption

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

b RER SR T H AR AR AR B TR A 2

T RIEFJUE— A F AR B AR A T Y ] A AR

3o ABEER AR S SR ) A 2% )

G R IERIT AR ] B AR B AR AR LI ] A2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA5 A e ke

31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described below.
The actual impacts upon adoption could be different to
those below, depending on additional reasonable and
supportable information being made to the Group at the
time of applying the standards.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt
HKEFRS 9 from 1 April 2018. The Group will not restate
comparative information and will recognise any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of equity at
1 April 2018. During 2017/18, the Group has performed
a detailed assessment of the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 9. The expected impacts relate to the impairment

requirements and are summarised as follows:

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are not accounted for at fair value through statement of
profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an
expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis
or a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected losses that are
estimated based on the present values of all cash shortfalls
over the remaining life of all of its accounts receivable.
Furthermore, the Group will apply the general approach
and record twelve-month expected credit losses that are
estimated based on the possible default events on its other

receivables within the next twelve months.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate the
application of the expected loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not
yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised costs and other items that subject to
the impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9
by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company,
if the expected credit loss model were to be applied by
the Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss
to be recognised by the Group as at 1 April 2018 would
be slightly increased as compared to the accumulated
amount recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable
to expected credit losses provision on accounts receivable
and contract assets. Such further impairment recognised
under expected credit loss model would reduce the opening

retained earnings and increase the deferred tax assets as at

1 April 2018.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in
January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the

amendments are available for adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKEFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in
HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total
revenue, information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective adoption is
required on the initial application of the standard. In June
2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15
to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property,
and transition. The amendments are also intended to
help ensure a more consistent application when entities
adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity
of applying the standard. The Group plans to adopt the
transitional provisions in HKFRS 15 to recognise the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 April
2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements only to contracts that are not completed
before 1 April 2018. The Group expects that the
transitional adjustment to be made on 1 April 2018 upon
initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be material.
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HEH ()

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)
The directors of the Company have assessed the impacts
on application of HKFRS 15 and the expected impacts are

as follows:

(a) Building construction and maintenance business
Performance obligations satisfied over time
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when an
entity transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following

criteria is met:

(i) the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s

performance, as the entity performs;

(ii) the entity’s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or

enhanced; or

(iii) the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the
entity has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HE ) (%)
STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Building construction and maintenance business

(a) BB R R AR (A1)

(continued)

Performance obligations satisfied over time (continued)
If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these three situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the sale
of that good or service at a single point in time, being
when control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership is only one of the indicators that will
be considered in determining when the transfer of

control occurs.

The Group has assessed that its contracts with
customers fulfil the criteria for recognising revenue
over time under HKFRS 15. Methods that can be used
under HKFRS 15 to measure the Group’s progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation satisfied over time include (i) output
method (i.e. recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurement of the value to the customer of the
entity’s performance to date) and; (ii) input method
(i.e. recognise revenue on the basis of the entity’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation). In measuring the work progress under the
new revenue standard, the Group considers that an
output method with reference to progress certificates
issued by customers and any adjustment, where it
is necessary and can be objectively determined, on
the work progress would appropriately depict the
transfer of control of goods or services to customers
for individual projects under the new standard. So far
as the measurement of progress for the Group’s typical
contracts is concerned, the Group does not expect
the adoption of HKFRS 15 would significantly affect
its financial position and performance based on the

assessment performed so far.
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STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Building construction and maintenance business

(a) BB R R AR (A1)

96

(continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract

Under HKFRS 15, if the costs incurred in fulfilling a
contract with a customer are not within the scope of
another standard, an entity shall recognise an asset
from the costs incurred to fulfil a contract only if

those costs meet all of the following criteria:

(i) The costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the entity can

specifically identify;

(ii) The costs generate or enhance resources of
the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future; and

(iii) The costs are expected to be recovered.

Costs that relate to satisfied performance obligations
(or partially satisfied performance obligations) in
the contracts and costs for which the Group cannot
distinguish whether the costs relate to unsatisfied
performance obligations or to satisfied performance

obligations shall be expensed as incurred under

HKEFRS 15.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING He Q) (%)

STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Building construction and maintenance business (a) HEFHEE R AR ()
(continued)
Costs to fulfil a contract (continued) R IBITHATEEE 1 AR (4
Currently, contract costs are recognised by reference H T > A A RA R 255 6 4 50 1R B B
to the stage of completion of the contract, which is T AR - RSB 2 F R BRI
measured with reference to the progress certificates R E R o AREE G - RAEHE
issued by the customers. The Group has assessed Vo 5 i o v ) 45 15905 T R 8 SO L e R
that the adoption of HKFRS 15 may result in earlier B LR AT B4 J 4 275 R B B 5 R R o

recognition of contract costs that relate to satisfied

performance obligations.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing A0 ] ¥ 55 B AR AL PR A A e T A
the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption. The extent BRI 1SR L o RIBIRAEE
of impact on the Group’s financial position and B e 5 HE RN SR 159848 > BHAER [ A %
performance upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 IR0 B 3% B R B B A 4 1B (R )
would depend on the progress of and facts specific to ARER RGN A BEE -

the Group’s individual contracts.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 1 (%)
STANDARDS (continued)

(b) Presentation and disclosure

(b) 5 B

98

The presentation and disclosure requirements in
HKFRS 15 are more detailed than those under the
current HKAS 18. The presentation requirements
represent a significant change from current
practice and will significantly increase the volume
of disclosures required in the Group’s financial
statements. Many of the disclosure requirements in
HKFRS 15 are new and the Group has assessed that
the impact of some of these disclosure requirements
will be significant. In particular, the Group expects
that the notes to the financial statements will be
expanded because of the disclosure of significant
judgements made on determining the transaction
prices of those contracts that include variable
consideration, how the transaction prices have been
allocated to the performance obligations, and the
assumptions made to estimate the stand-alone selling
price of each performance obligation. In addition, as
required by HKFRS 15, the Group will disaggregate
revenue recognised from contracts with customers
into categories that depict how the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
are affected by economic factors. It will also disclose
information about the relationship between the
disclosure of disaggregated revenue and revenue

information disclosed for each reportable segment.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 UL R 0 R A 30 7 U U I
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HE ) (%)
STANDARDS (continued)

(b) Presentation and disclosure (continued)

(b) 25 B 8% (47)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS
17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition
of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a
class of property, plant and equipment to which the
revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such
as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16

is substantially unchanged from the accounting
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(b) Presentation and disclosure(continued)

under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all
leases using the same classification principle as in
HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases
and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and
lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the
standard using either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption
and is considering whether it will choose to take
advantage of the practical expedients available and
which transition approach and reliefs will be adopted.
As disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements,
at 31 March 2018, the Group had future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in aggregate of approximately HK$3,584,000. Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included
therein may need to be recognised as new right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities. Further analysis, however,
will be needed to determine the amount of new rights
of use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised,
including, but not limited to, any amounts relating to
leases of low-value assets and short term leases, other
practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new leases
entered into before the date of adoption.
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31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Company the current ability to direct the relevant

activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Company’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the

parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,

less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar

accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of joint venture are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been
a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of joint venture
is included as part of the Group’s investments in joint

venture.

E R ul BORBEE (A7)

BB AR B

fra R I PR - 6 K PR
BHAMES EEBMENEEFE - KRR
P a1 MG 7 o A2 8 8 I % 9k P S A g 45
)~ 5 A R B 3 BB SR IG [F] A e Y 4%
5 FE H — Bl B e S8 AR AE o

A AR F R — B B A SR M BB IR AR R
AR A 1 A A L U A e s 1R
Fr e B IR DL AR -

LA W HE A2 AE B9 A 1A BOSR T A Hh i 2 DA
EH—F -

7% 558 T A 5 e S WO AR S A I St 2
oA 53 BT £ 48 2 B LAt 2 T E A\ 3% H 5
M o BRAT > AR AR B B A SR AR B
T R S ) - A T A A% R 2 0 ) A e
PR SL AL AL T S By (R ) o ACSR M B LAy
B A 3 H] Y 22 B P 4B SR R B B e M) I s
18 > F 3R ACER [ Al i SR B L I i
B > WA W B A 5 B 4R e R P 4R
7t BUIRAR I BR A o WO £ A S AR Y
P G AR Z AR SR MR 8 A SRR —
4o

Annual Report 2017-2018 FERS



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

z @& I i2 # R 8 R

2 g

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA5 A e ke

31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Investment in a joint venture (continued)

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment
in an associate, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for
under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss
of the joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
joint venture upon loss of joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is

recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic

best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:

Level I — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels
in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to statement of profit or loss in the period in

which it arises.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the

same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow

subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies: (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for

its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as

follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease term

and 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office 20% to 33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 24% to 30%
Computer equipment 20% to 24%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant

asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over

the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and receivables, as appropriate. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the

acquisition of the financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash

equivalents, deposits, accounts and other receivables.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in interest income in the
statement of the profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for

receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s

consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3,

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the

rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at

initial recognition).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other

expenses in statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as

loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and
other payables, accruals, amounts due to a joint venture

and interest-bearing bank loans.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well

as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when

appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

E R ul BORBEE (A7)

A £ ()

‘At 4

AR HERAR > B B A R A R
B 3 4 B B R A B > T B AR
HK - RIHRRATINR o %A R s R A F A
L i I 25 20 T R 0 i A I R A
RS, o

w8 RS IR T T B M I A A A o
Prime el 6] - DA B AR 2 BB R — 0 o i
FASRSRAS o BT BRI 2 8 G 60 55 % 45 25 5% i S
BEAN o

M BERE

AR [ % A A8 DR ) 9 R SA HR AE
S DAV AN R A B R BB AR
3 5 5 B 00 3R T 4 BOIR R
] o A 25 4 DR ) 00 0 3 3 A P B 5 2 1
i OBt 3% % 6 ) B8 B A 22 5 A7 DA
) o RO HERE - AEEZUTHWE S
B BB R AR ()3 DR
AT B B AR P B SR B R A
W B (i) B0 2 Tl i Y 4 RO (v 6 FH) ) 3R st

Annual Report 2017-2018 FERS



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

z @& I i2 # R 8 R

2 g

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA5 A e ke

31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or

loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part

of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or
loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss, either

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a
joint venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part

of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are

expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are

expensed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from construction, renovation and other contracts,
on the percentage of completion basis, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Construction,

renovation and other contracts” below;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount

of the financial asset; and

(c¢) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established.

Construction, renovation and other contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims
and incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise
direct materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed

construction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the percentage of certified value of work performed to

date to the total contract sum of the relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they
are anticipated by management. Where contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as an

amount due from customers for contract works.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis.
Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains
untaken as at the end of the reporting period is permitted
to be carried forward and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the
end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the employees

and carried forward.

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(“ORSQO”) retirement benefit scheme for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the ORSO scheme. This
scheme operates in a way similar to the MPF Scheme,
except that when an employee leaves the scheme prior
to his/her interest in the Group’s employee contributions
vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited

employer’s contributions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and bye-
laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.

Construction, renovation and other contracts

As further explained in note 3 to the financial statements,
revenue and profit recognition on contract works are
dependent on the estimation of the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the work performed to
date. Based on the Group’s past experience and the nature
of the contract activities undertaken by the Group, the
Group determines the point at which it considers the work
is sufficiently advanced such that the costs to complete
can be reliably estimated. As a result, until this point
is reached, the amount of contract revenue recognised
would not include profit which the Group may eventually
realise from the work performed to date. In addition, actual
outcomes in terms of total contract costs may be higher
or lower than those estimated at the end of the reporting
period, which would affect the revenue and profit to be

recognised in future years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. FEEG A B (58)

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Construction, renovation and other contracts (continued)
Significant assumptions are required to estimate the total
contract costs that would affect the total outcome of the
construction contract. The estimates were made based
on past experience and knowledge of the project and the

market.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has only one
reportable operating segment which is the contract works
segment of which the Group engages in contract works as
a main contractor or sub-contractor, primarily in respect of
building construction and repair, maintenance, alteration
and addition works. Accordingly, no segment information

is presented.

The Group’s revenue from external customers was derived
solely from its operations in Hong Kong and the non-

current assets of the Group were all located in Hong Kong.
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B 2 W ROk (A7)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from each major customer which accounted for

o8

HEE PR
Al A 55 B AR A BE A 10% 5 DA L i 2% 32 %%

10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the year, is set out Pl ARIIMT :
below:
2018 2017
ZZ2— N\ —&FE L
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T
Customer A KEH 2,656,907 1,330,813
Customer B 9=V 302,929 357,252
Customer C AN N/A® 385,748
NN
& Less than 10% of the Group’s revenue & AR BE T A 10%

Except for the aforesaid, no other single external customer

accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

B BSR4 > e A ST At B — AN % P Y

WAL A W A 10% 8D | o

Information about products and services e o B B & R
2018 2017
=)\ —F L
HKS$’000 HK$’000
F#x T
Revenue from external customers: REIREFZBA :
Contract works for building construction — MFEHELRE A 4) TF 3,015,304 2,037,806
Contract works for repair, maintenance, Hefe - g B MBS TR
alteration and addition 96,960 280,511
3,112,264 2,318,317
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the appropriate proportion of contract

revenue of construction, maintenance and other contracts

during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
BE R 2 3

z & I i # R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA5 A e ke

31 March 2018 ZF—NEFE=H=1—H

6. WA ~ JefbBoA K Bdi
WA T t4E A - R LM TR B A
H Al e Z A AT o

A Z WO~ Al e A B g 2 4

gains, is as follows: T
2018 2017
e 20X 2 R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T F#x
Revenue WA
Contract revenue AR A 3,112,264 2,318,317
Other income and gains LA BN B K 2
Interest income B A 4,468 1,440
Gain on disposal of items of HEY 3 - e R feTE B B es
property, plant and equipment - 84
Sundry income HIEIA 325 =
4,793 1,524
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31 March 2018

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

ZFENE=ZH=A—H

7. BRBLHT Bk A

ARG 2 BRBLRT R A TR GREA) T A%

(crediting): I :
2018 2017
ZZ2— N\ —F L
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
et T# T T
Contract costs B H AR 2,862,972 2,065,285
Depreciation” Pres- 14 2,793 2,840
Auditor’s remuneration A% L F 1 4 1,897 1,800
Employee benefit expense (excluding 11 B 48 1 B 3 (4 i 4
directors’ remuneration (note 9))": EHNE — (M)
Wages and salaries TE N4 196,087 151,676
Pension scheme contributions B IR 4wt ek
(defined contribution schemes) (RE s 5,618 4,639
201,705 156,315
Minimum lease payments under FARIRZ R EHEM S
operating leases 24,352 20,298
Government subsidies™ BUF&E B (1,024) (45)

Training Council and the Construction Industry Council,
institutions established by the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government, for providing on-the-job training for graduate

For the year ended 31 March 2018, depreciation and employee
benefit expense of HK$755,000 (2017: HK$565,000) and
HK$198,361,000 (2017: HK$152,116,000), respectively, are
included in contract costs disclosed above.

Subsidies have been received from the Hong Kong Vocational

BEZFZ-NEZA=F—HILEE ¥
5 % A B A R B 32 43 7 755,0009 06 (=%
— B4 :565,000% 8 ) % 198,361,000% 78 (=
F—-L4E 1 152,116,0009 ) B & 78 Lkt

AR -

engineers and trainees, respectively. There were no unfulfilled

conditions or contingencies relating to these subsidies.

i S 2 B A T I R R S SRR (A
VR AT B BOR L AR > 2 R TR
S 1 TRR e B AR R AW ) o %A
1y S 08T ] R Jo AR A B AR O
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S 65 0 3R B e
31 March 2018 —ZFE—NE=H=4+—H
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WHEM
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BBEEH AT
2018 2017
R )\ —F L
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x Fi#
Interest on bank loans BITEHRZH A 221 235
9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. WHFREFHITBAHRME
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

AR BRI 22 Pt 2 L SR (T i ) ~ &
(A A 5383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ () & (f)
R DA B 22 ) (4 8 2 5 ) 2 BERE) BT 5752
I 3¢ 8 F) A 4 B S 0 5 AT BON S T
T

2018 2017
it S ZF LA
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#L F#C
Fees 4 432 710
Other emoluments: oAl 7
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fidr - R EA R
in kind 10,971 5,210
Discretionary performance-related SR B B 2 WS AL AL
bonuses 15,210 1,381
Pension scheme contributions IRAR 4Tk
(defined contribution schemes) (e Bkt 31) 108 11
26,289 6,668
26,721 7,378
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31 March 2018 ZF—NEFE=H=1—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. AR wAT R4 (5)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) FSeIEATH S
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors AR BE N AT T B Sn IR AT R A 4
during the year were as follows: WmF :
Salaries,
allowances Performance- Pension
BRE-F—N\4#E and benefits related scheme
Year ended 31 March 2018 ZAZt—HILEE Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
B el BURBUME BKAH
e REWHR WA itk it

HK$°000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000
T#x T#x T#x T#% T#x

Dr. Li Yok Sheung ZHmE+ 144 - - - 144
Ms. Mak Suk Hing L2 U kin 144 = = = 144
Ms. Leung Yuen Shan, Maisy R4 144 - - - 144
432 - - . 432
Salaries,

allowances  Performance- Pension

R S and benefits related scheme
Year ended 31 March 2017 ZH=F—HIEE Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total

e mu ERBIME RIMREEHE
e REwAG 2L itk GEil

HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$000
F#x Fi#x Fi#x T Fi#

Dr. Li Yok Sheung 2B 24 - = = 24
Ms. Mak Suk Hing MWLt 24 - - - 24
Ms. Leung Yuen Shan, Maisy i+ 24 - - - 24

72 = - - 72
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31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. AR wAT R4 (5)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (continued) (a) P IEATH I (%)
Dr. Li Yok Sheung, Ms. Mak Suk Hing and Ms. Leung ZEfR M 2SO L R R L+
Yuen Shan, Maisy were appointed as independent WoZ—tE—A T \HERTARA
non-executive directors of the Company on 18 HWSLIE AT ES o

January 2017.

There were no other emoluments payable to the TAAAEFE Y > 3 RE AT B Sr JE AT R
independent non-executive directors during the year ZH Al 4 (= — B4 E) o
(2017: nil).
(b) Executive directors (b) ATH P
Salaries,
allowances Performance- Pension
BREZZ— )N\ and benefits related scheme
Year ended 31 March 2018 ZH=F—HIEE Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
B Wi BURBIUME BKAHH
e REPHNE WA it it

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000
TFi#tx Tt T#x T#bx T#tx

Mr. Ngai Chun Hung Wl = 3,380 9,900 18 13,298
M. Yau Kwok Fai Ui R SR = 1,068 2,400 18 3,486
M. Ip Yik Nam TR = 1,950 1,000 18 2,968
Mr. Yam Kui Hung RS = 1,430 110 18 1,558
Mt. Lau Chi Fai, Daniel B e A = 1,767 1,000 18 2,785
M. Cheung Ho Yuen RIGIRA A = 1,376 800 18 2,194

= 10,971 15,210 108 26,289
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ﬂ
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31 March 2018 ZZFE—NE=H=1—H
9. PRl AT B4 ()

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued) (b) BAFED(4)
Salaries,

allowances  Performance- Pension

BREZZ—LE=H and benefits related scheme
Year ended 31 March 2017 =+ —HIERE Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total

Fra o HN BURBIME RIREEHE
WA REWAG ZBEEL Btk &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#r T T#r T#r T#r
Mr. Ngai Chun Hung PRk 480 = = 3 483
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai it AR S 158 - - 3 161
Mr. Ip Yik Nam E YN P - 1,513 - 17 1,530
Mr. Yam Kui Hung SR a: - 1,320 330 18 1,668
Mr. Lau Chi Fai, Daniel BlE S = 1,443 845 18 2,306
Mr. Cheung Ho Yuen R R = 934 206 18 1,158
638 5,210 1,381 71 7,306

Mr. Ngai Chun Hung, Mr. Yau Kwok Fai were

appointed as executive directors of the Company on
11 July 2016. Mr. Yam Kui Hung, Mr. Lau Chi Fai,
Daniel and Mr. Cheung Ho Yuen were appointed as
executive directors of the Company on 6 September
2016. Mr. Ip Yik Nam joined the Group in April
2016 and was also appointed as the chief executive
officer and executive director of the Company on
6 September 2016.

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2017: nil).

BYRMESE A ~ i BORELSE A  —F—N
EAt+—HEZERAAFAATES -
BRER-ANEANAERERAAF
PATHEF - FEMGAER ZF - N4EN
HmAASE B3 i — R —REJL A H
WRAL T AN AT IR AATH S o

A ) S 4 AR JBE A A T
B B T R UM I T AT T T
BB b4 ) o
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31 March 2018 ZF—NEFE=H=1—H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2017: three) directors, details of whose remuneration

are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration

10. A ERHEAL
T AR AR JBE 9 44 Bk O B AL I & (=
B—hE SH)HEE S WEZIMEFNT
WV E S a0 o 4R N H BRI E R

of the remaining non-directors, highest paid employees iR B Z 7R Hwm T -
during the year are as follows:

2018 2017
ZZ2— N\ e Sl o 2
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %4> ~ B R EYH S 900 2,595
Performance-related bonuses BRI Z AL 4L 3,799 921
Pension scheme contributions B & # ALK 18 36
4,717 3,552

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

T < i T 1) 46 A5 v 2 B v R L P\ M
W

follows:
Number of employees
VN
2018 2017
e 20 — Rt
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 #7T %2,000,000¥ 7T = 2
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 ¥7T % 5,000,000¥ 70 1 -
1 2
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31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H

11. INCOME TAX

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. Hong
Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year.

11. Brfssit
02 B B T o e o 4 T O 1 L B R R
B > AR [ B 2 IR e O A T O U
AR AR AT AR o B s R AR BE T AR 4 AR 45
BE N TE 7T W B A 2 A R RE R i R B R
16.5% (= F—L4F : 16.5% )1F HHEfl -

2018 2017
—R— )\ e Sl i
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#r

Current — Hong Kong W - A
Charge for the year A4 2 34,139 25,9178
Overprovision in the prior year A LA I AT R (17) -
Deferred (note 23) WAL (M aE23) (216) 291
Total tax charge for the year AR BB IE 3 HH AR 33,906 26,269

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which
the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

308 FE TP ) P 5 A B 3 it B B B il ¥ R < A I
¢ H SRR PR BROBE SR S B IE S A R R
wE

2018 2017
—®— )\ —F—ti
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#x
Profit before tax B i i A 208,877 127,756
Tax at the Hong Kong tax rate of 16.5% & &H#HHLEK16.5%7H 2 BLIEH 34,465 21,080
Adjustment in respect of current tax of 405 A 10 T R 350 50 I R 2
previous periods (17) =
Profits and losses attributable to 15 S A 8 A SE R A I R 1R
a joint venture - 3,025
Income not subject to tax Y A VN (737) (198)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT IR Z B X 50 2,400
Tax losses not recognised AR TR Z Bl s 1R 191 42
Others HoAty (46) (80)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective AR EE 1 P MR B R AT 5 2 BLIE X
tax rate 33,906 26,269
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31 March 2018

ZENE=ZH=A—H

12. DIVIDENDS 12. BB
2018 2017
it 2 T e Sl s
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T TF#x
Special dividends — nil (2017: N/A") R B B, A i

per ordinary share (Z&F—L4 - REH) S 600,000

Proposed final — HK5 cents (2017: nil) IR E IR S © 588 B S wAl
per ordinary share (ZF—t4 /) 100,000 =
100,000 600,000

13.

The final dividend proposed subsequent to the end of
the reporting period is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2017 and before the completion of
the Reorganisation, certain members of the Group declared special
dividends of HK$600,000,000 to their then shareholder, Profit
Chain. Such special dividends were paid during the year ended
31 March 2017. Investors who became the shareholders of the
Company after the Listing Date were not entitled to such special

dividends.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 2,000,000,000 (2017: 1,554,794,521) in issue
during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate the basic earnings per share amount for the
year ended 31 March 2017 includes 1 ordinary share of
the Company issued on 11 July 2016, the 999 new shares
issued pursuant to the Reorganisation (note 24(b)) and the
1,499,999,000 new ordinary shares issued pursuant to the
Capitalisation Issue (note 24(c)), on the assumption that
these shares had been in issue throughout the year ended
31 March 2017, and the weighted average of 500,000,000
new ordinary shares issued pursuant to the listing of shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange (the “Share
Offer”) (note 24(d)).

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.
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13.

TP 35 B0 AR St o Yk 2 AR B B R A ]
B S SR AT B e RO 4 K o A IR R v
TiaEE o

PRE-FR-EEEA =L RE
ALZEIRET > ARG A T H 4 6 © 1 L
JB R Profit Chain & JR4 31l i &.600,000,0009%
TG o AR RS CREECR A=A
b HARE BT o A LT H AR R A
TR B A S A R B, -

%&ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%)ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ
]

B B 3 AR 2R T AR 98 AR 4R B BE A R 8
BEREFe A N AL G A X FEN T BN
2,000,000,0008 (=& —L4F : 1,554,794,521
JB ) 35 98 B = i Y ot AR o

BE_Z2—-LE=A=Z+—HILEENE
T B A 2 F B 0 R 0 R F ) 8
BAAFANR_-Z—NELH+—HETH
1B % 98 e ~ AR 98 T AL B AT 10 999 I BT I A
(BHF5E24(b) ) M AR 98 & AL 88 47 1M 8 47 14
1,499,999,000 Bt ¥ 48 37 B4 (B 5E24(c) ) (M
RZERNNEE_FE—-LE=H=1+—H
IRAE R O AT) > DL SARIR AR A = B4y
AT A2 B b T T B 4T #9.500,000,000 % 35 48 B
A (B 5E24(d)) (T Be Ay 3585 1) B ke SF 3
%l o

REEZF-)N\FER_F-LE=ZA=Z1+—
F kAR > A SR 5 S O 38 47 LV AE
BRI
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31 March 2018 —ZFE—NFE=H=+—H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. WX ~ BB R

Furniture,

fixtures and

Leasehold office Motor Computer
improvements equipment vehicles equipment Total
I8
AR L
LIRS 1 S Yt Bl R it

HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$000
T#x T#x T#x T#x T#x

31 March 2018 “Z2—-NE=HA=1—H
At 31 March 2017 and R-F—tHE=ZA=+—H

1 April 2017: KZF—LHENA—H :

Cost AR 4,385 11,491 12,900 4,033 32,809

Accumulated depreciation B (3,809) (10,643) (8,761) (3,795) (27,008)
Net carrying amount I T 576 848 4,139 238 5,801
At 1 April 2017, net of REZF—LHENH—H »

accumulated depreciation Mk EHeE 576 848 4,139 238 5,801
Additions RE - 16 690 11 717
Depreciation provided for the year 4} 4 (121) (306) (2,305) (61) (2,793)
At 31 March 2018, net of RNoF—)\E=A=+—H>

accumulated depreciation Mgk Bt E 455 558 2,524 188 3,725
At 31 March 2018: BB NEZA=+—H :

Cost B 4,385 11,507 13,590 4,044 33,526

Accumulated depreciation B (3,930) (10,949) (11,066) (3,856) (29,801)
Net carrying amount i T 455 558 2,524 188 3,725
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31 March 2018

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

S NEZHE R
14. W% ~ B4 Beisefli (40

VA5 A e ke

(continued)
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Motor Computer
improvements equipment vehicles equipment Total
&I
46 E K
HEmEEE WAEHHE B B At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 TH8IC T T8I T
31 March 2017 e Sl S I el 1|
At 31 March 2016 and REZB—AEZA=+—H
1 April 2016: RZF—AENA—A :
Cost JA 3,779 10,767 12,956 3,945 31,447
Accumulated depreciation EEEiE (3,779) (10,418) (7,300) (3,736) (25,233)
Net carrying amount R T EE S 349 5,656 209 6,214
At 1 April 2016, net of REZZ—AENA—H >
accumulated depreciation Nk EstigE = 349 5,656 209 6,214
Additions NE 606 724 1,009 88 2,427
Depreciation provided for the year 4FJ [ # (30) (225) (2,526) (59) (2,840)
At 31 March 2017, net of N_F—tHE=A=+—H
accumulated depreciation k2 e 576 848 4,139 238 5,801
At 31 March 2017: N_F—tE=H=+—H:
Cost AR 4,385 11,491 12,900 4,033 32,809
Accumulated depreciation SRR (3,809) (10,643) (8,761) (3,795) (27,008)
Net carrying amount HR i A 576 848 4,139 238 5,801
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31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H

15. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 15. R —HH B AeRH B E

2018 2017
e 2iC: 2 —R L
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#C F#x
Share of net assets A & 2 A 8,394 8,394
The amount due to a joint venture included in the Group’s A E R A A EMN— AR

current liabilities is unsecured, interest-free and has no TE TR ~ A B JE ] B A B o

fixed terms of repayment.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TEHRAEHGELERBRANE R
information of the Group’s joint venture that is not B R)

individually material:

Share of the joint venture’s loss for the year  JEAL A A E4E I H

Share of the joint venture’s total JREA 88 A 64T J5E 2 T s 4R AL
comprehensive loss for the year

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REERNGBEEREZ
investments in the joint venture A8 Vi

2018 2017
SR N 2
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x T#C

- (18,333)

- (18,333)

8,394 8,394
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31 March 2018

16. CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION AND

17.

OTHER CONTRACTS

VA5 A e ke

ZE-NE=ZH=A—H
16. &% ~ B Kb TS

2018 2017
ZEB— N\ e S i
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# 0 Fi#
Gross amount due from customers for WEW R P Z A7 TR kAR
contract works” 17,306 315,864
Contract costs incurred plus recognised B XA B R R Z R A B
profits less recognised losses to date O RAZEIR 157,296 2,175,276
Less: Progress billings I o A MR HLROE (139,990) (1,859,412)
17,306 315,864

All of the above gross amount due from customers for contract
works are expected to be recovered within twelve months from the
end of the reporting period.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable represented receivables for contract
works. The payment terms of contract works receivables

are stipulated in the relevant contracts.

Retentions receivable included in accounts receivable
amounted to HK$203,219,000 (2017: HK$188,249,000),
which are repayable within terms ranging from one to four

years.

As at 31 March 2017, amounts due from the Remaining

Vantage Group included in accounts receivable amounted

to HK$20,403,000, which are repayable in one year.

The Group assigned its financial benefits under certain
contract works to secure certain general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 22) and as at 31 March 2018,
the aggregate amount of accounts receivable related
to such contract works pledged to secure the relevant
banking facilities amounted to HK$220,143,000 (2017:
HK$231,567,000).

Annual Report 2017-2018 FE#RS

o THE R BTA HECE P2 A ) TR R AR
F A3 35 391 AE -+ = 3 PO -

17. HEWOR %

JE W SR sk 46 Fr 4 TR BRI © & 40 TREHE
Wk JEL B S A s A B £ (] RT W o

JFEE AL ek A, A %) R IR AR 3 42 203,219,00098 6
(—Z—-B4 : 188,249,000 C) » Bk A
P—F Y4 o

R-F—LEZH=+—H > BREKEE
Py HE W £ T 245 4R 19 3K U 20,403,000 #5 I >
BRI By —4E o

AR ] H R T A A TR M S A 25
DL DR 32 T A B Y 3 — M SR AT b (B
#E22) e AR )E=ZA=+—H - HHM
B 4 AR B 7 DAVRCA > 25 A BRSRAT R
B PR 1 ME R AR AR B 220,143,000 9 TG
(= Z—H4 : 231,567,000 7C) °
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31 March 2018
17. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

2 g

ZFENE=ZH=A—H

An ageing analysis of accounts receivable as at the end

17. REWCR (A1)

TR IR AHE ) 2 W sk 1 38 5

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as TEZERSMT -
follows:

2018 2017
ZR )\ —F -t
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#C
Current to three months BIEA =18 A 326,645 306,840
Four to six months PuENEH 5,473 19,575
Over six months FBimASAE A 198,364 149,290
530,482 475,705

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable that are not

St 488 1 ) 8 0 e DA R AR sk M B

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is AHWTF :
as follows:
2018 2017
ZZ2— N\ R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#oC T
Past due but not impaired: 760 Y 1E 7 JE R
One to three months past due W — =1 H = 35,125
Four to six months past due 78391 9 2 75 1R H 8,738 -
Seven to twelve months past due am-EE+ A 270 4,325
Over one year past due J 1) 8 48— 4 8,068 -
17,076 39,450
Neither past due nor impaired U 41 78 341 75 J 6l £ 513,406 436,255
530,482 475,705
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31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H

17. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 17. HEWOR (748)

Accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired J60 1100 Y 9T %) R OSSR
relate to a number of independent customers that have Gtk RGBS P AR o RIEAAER
a good track record with the Group. Based on past B8 > AN ] OE 3Rk S JE R L S A AR ET R R
experience, the directors of the Company are of the fiefs - FRAGEERWER KM - H
opinion that no allowance for impairment is necessary 5K 8 7% VT 2 BOMC o1 A B 4 B o A 4 T I e
in respect of these balances as there has not been a W% S A R T AT T HE T A B A A AR B
significant change in credit quality and the balances are 2 o

still considered fully recoverable. The Group did not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these

balances.
Accounts receivable that are neither past due nor impaired O 0 78 30 7 S0 ol AL 1%y S R ok BEL 22 S0 ) S %
relate to a number of independent customers for whom AT B > 2N T R A AL B o

there was no recent history of default.

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. Tl ~ %4 B I A KOsk
RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
e 2N 0 e S w2
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T
Prepayments VAR IE 13,847 11,597
Deposits and other receivables e 4 T Al B ik 119,361 3,845
Total A5t 133,208 15,442
Non-current portion FEIR B (113,641) -
Current portion B 19,567 15,442
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. bl B A E S A A o BRSNS ER BT
The financial assets included in the above balances relate $55 1) 4 i 7 77 BRI S A0 10 O A Bk v R K
to receivables for which there was no recent history of KA -
default.
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31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

19. BLE R BLE&FMEY

2018 2017
“F N\ —E b
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#x

Cash and cash equivalents: e MBS MY -
Cash and bank balances Bl R SR AT K 1,015,501 732,196
Non-pledged time deposits SEHEA 2 9 53k 170,000 -
1,185,501 15,442

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on

daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made

for varying periods of between one day and 12 months

depending on the immediate cash requirements of the

Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time

deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with banks

with high credit ratings and no recent history of default.

20. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

20.

AT BL SRR R H SRAT A aOR R B T
5l 700 3% e RO B o S A A K B TR A
> W RE1MA RS > $PAGEHE
IE B R B o Sl 4 4% A O A R R R T
PR o SRAT &5 85 T3 42 JOTE w6 5 ) R A L oI i
W KRBk BRAT ©

HE A Bk sk

T35 R 4% 8 5 3 2 ) A R R

ST

2018 2017

—Z— )4 —F L

HKS$’000 HK$’000

T T

Current to three months ==/ A 187,941 243,361
Four to six months N ECYAY [ DE] 20,912 24,408
Over six months FE S E A 229,318 215,922
438,171 483,691
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20. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (continued) 20. HEAF WK (48)
At 31 March 2018, retentions payable included in MR- N\E=Z=H=+—H  BNEZRLE
accounts payable amounted to HK$197,588,000 (2017: FY JRE A R 75 45 45 197,588,000 6 (—F — -k
HK$172,507,000), which were normally settled within A2 172,507,0008 70 ) > — B B A —
terms ranging from one to four years. YA o
Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing. The payment FEAT R A R o SR A B A AT
terms are stipulated in the relevant contracts. B o
21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21. A HEAT 3k B R e
2018 2017
ZZ N4 —E b
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#or
Other payables At A K 21,866 20,804
Accruals FEIRE R 1,998 1,455
23,864 22,259
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are expected FoARE A 2 S 8, o 3 TE AR — 4R P TS o
to be settled within one year.
22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 22. st BT Bk
Interest-bearing bank loans of the Group are all repayable A AR ] 2 7 SR R B —4E N AR 1 5 B T
on demand or within one year and are analysed as follows: BT
2018 2017
ZE N\ —E b
HKS$’000 HK$’000
F#T Fi#x
Bank loans — secured and SRAT K — B W &
at floating interest rates TR B R A5 S = 50,769
The interest rates of the Group’s bank loans are primarily A 5 ] SR AT Bk i ) 2 AR U e SR AT
repriced every month based on HIBOR changes. L BB A mEE o
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22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H

22. wh B #4T HE% (4)

(continued)
The Group’s secured bank loans and/or banking facilities

are secured by:

(i) legal charges over the Remaining Vantage Group’s

investment properties, which had an aggregate
carrying amount of nil (2017: HK$1,851,000,000);

(ii) legal charges over the Remaining Vantage Group’s
land and buildings, which had an aggregate carrying
amount of nil (2017: HK$127,586,000);

(iii) the assignment of the Group’s financial benefits

under certain contract work with an aggregate
accounts receivable of HK$220,143,000 (2017:
HK$231,567,000); and

(iv) cross guarantee provided by the Remaining Vantage
Group of nil (2017: HK$3,580,000,000).

The Group’s bank loans are all denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. All corporate guarantees and securities provided by
the Remaining Vantage Group for the benefit of the Group
were released upon the repayment of bank loans.

ASE A AT RAT R AR BRATE BT
HIIE H AR

(i) BMRTHEGEELEDENGEIT - 5
B T 2 i (& —-B4E 1 1,851,000,000
Wwot)

(i) B TRHEFEE LB EEFTRHEEM
Gl MIEmME B E(ZF— L4
127,586,0004#70)

(iii) 0o A 4 2 1 A AR AR 40 W B A
75 o JE W MR K 8RR 75 220,143,000 9 oG
(—=F—-b4 1 231,567,000 7C) : K

(iv) B FRBEEERENE XIERE(CE
—-B4E : 3,580,000,000#7T) ©
AR RIT R B IC A A - R TR

5 5 I 2 A 4 P ) 2 B 36 A i A ) 4R AR %
AT T SO SRAT Bk A B
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23. DEFERRED TAX 23. EERLH
The components of deferred tax liabilities and assets RAEN - BERIEABRKEERSWT ¢

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EHEBLIE A
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related
depreciation
R R B T
1 978 e L
HK$’000
T
At 1 April 2016 P ANENMHA—H 858
Deferred tax credited to statement of profit or loss FAAE N EEAH 25 28 R it BLE
during the year (note 11) (Mfit11) (587)
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 PR -LE=EAZT—H K
R —LEMH—H 211
Deferred tax credited to statement of profit or loss AAE N EEAH 25 28 R i BLE
during the year (note 11) (BtaEL1) (228)
At 31 March 2018 R )\EZA=+—H 43
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23. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 23. WHEBLE (5)
Deferred tax assets YIE #iE B IF &
Depreciation Losses
in excess available

of related  for offsetting

depreciation  against future

allowance taxable profits Total
R A WG R R
i R B
it s BL A e M 2 p i it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T F#x T
At 1 April 2016 R —N_FNH—H 596 335 931
Deferred tax charged to statement RENFAHEERY

of profit or loss during the year MRIERLI (M 7E11)

(note 11) (543) (335) (878)
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 R _F—LHF=H=+—H

K —R—LENA—H 53 - 53
Deferred tax charged to statement PENAERERDY

of profit or loss during the year ERERLIE (M 7E11)

(note 11) (12) = (12)
At 31 March 2018 REF-NEZA=+—H 41 - 41
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of AR [ A v 2 2R W B TR RS 1 % 1,351,000
HK$1,351,000 (2017: HK$349,000). Subject to the final JE(ZF—L4 1 349,000%70) ° FEEBHLE
assessment of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department, JRy B AR RERLAR - I S5 JE i 48 W 4k 21 FR AT 1K
these tax losses are available indefinitely for offsetting 9 e A s 1H A 2 B G R 2R HE SRR R A o FR
against future taxable profits of the companies in which TR A AN K AT RE Y AR SR A AL 0 LR 1 R 41K 88
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been SR > WA AR B N A N R T SR IR B
recognised in respect of these losses, as it is not considered THE R o

probable that there would be sufficient future taxable

profits to utilise such amount.
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23, MEHEBLIE (4)
9 L Y (481)
RoB—NER B —LEZA=ZT—H
2 45 B T DR 2 ) 1 A 3 R R R U
TSI 0 2 A 45 O 45 2 R AR T R M A B IE
o JB B 2 M 3% 25 kO R i A 4 T
A AN BLIE £ £ o

23. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability for taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the
Group’s subsidiaries or joint venture as the Group has
no liability to additional tax should such amounts be
remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

A ] i H B SR S A e A T A BT A B

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. 2
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. A
2018 2017
e 20X 2 R
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x F#x
Authorised: WiRE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000/8¢
HK$0.01 each B B0.01 9 0 Z 8 i 100,000 100,000
[ssued and fully paid: CBETRERE -
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000/8%
HK$0.01 each 13 80.01 ¥ Z H il B 20,000 20,000
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

24. JBeAs (47)

The movements in the Company’s share capital during ARAFRRZF—ANFELH+—H (GEM L
the period from 11 July 2016 (date of incorporation) to HEDZE-F— )E=H=+—HI1L M H K
31 March 2018 were as follows: A B I F
Number of
ordinary shares Nominal value
Notes  of HK$0.01 each of ordinary shares
#)80.01 L2
M7t W@ EH 5 928 I i fH
HK$’000
T#7T
Authorised: W
At 11 July 2016 (date of incorporation) N_F—AELtH+—H
(G WASE ) (a) 1,000,000 10
Increase in authorised share capital m_Z—tHE—H+/N\H
on 18 January 2017 e A B I (c) 9,999,000,000 99,990
At 31 March 2017, 1 April 2017 and W_Z—LE=H=1+—H"
31 March 2018 ZE-LENA—-HR
“F2—-)\FE=H=1+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
CHET R EH JBEA
HK$’000
T#7
Issued and fully paid: BT
At 11 July 2016 (date of incorporation) H_F—AELH+—H
(GRS WAER ) (a) 1 =
Issue of new shares pursuant to MRYE T AL BT 0 A
the Reorganisation (b) 999 =
Capitalisation Issue HARALEEAT (c) 1,499,999,000 15,000
Issue of new shares pursuant to HRUR J A7y 5 8 8 47 0 IR Ay
the Share Offer (d) 500,000,000 5,000
At 31 March 2017, 1 April 2017 and HoZ2—bE=ZA=Z+—H -
31 March 2018 “R—tHENH—H K
“ZF—)\E=ZH=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Company was incorporated on 11 July 2016 with an initial
authorised share capital of HK$10,000 divided into 1,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each. On the date of incorporation, 1 ordinary
share of HK$0.01 was allotted and issued to the subscriber which
was transferred on the same day to Profit Chain.

On 12 January 2017, the Company, Profit Chain and Vital Tool
Limited (“Vital Tool”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tripartite agreement and pursuant to which the
Company agreed to issue and allot 999 shares to settle in full the
total principal amount of HK$55,951,401 due and owing by Vital
Tool to Profit Chain pursuant to a promissory note.

On 18 January 2017, an ordinary resolution of the Company was
passed and pursuant to which the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$10,000 to HK$100,000,000 by
the creation of 9,999,000,000 additional shares of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the shareholder passed on 18 January
2017, the Company allotted and issued a total of 1,499,999,000
ordinary shares, credited as fully paid at par, to Profit Chain
on 16 February 2017 by way of capitalisation of the sum of
HK$14,999,990 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company (the “Capitalisation Issue”).

In connection to the Share Offer, 500,000,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$1.1 per share for
a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$550,000,000.
Dealings in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
commenced on 20 February 2017.

25. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statements of changes

in equity.

Merger reserve
Merger reserve represents the reserve that arose

pursuant to the Reorganisation.
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VA5 A e ke

ZENE=ZH=A—H

24. A (45)

Wi -

(a)

(b)

ARAFRZZ—NELA+—H ML
W5k v 58 A 510,0009 58 > 43 51,000,000
T B 0.01 s G Y e o A ST RS H
> 1B AE0.01 9 0 A % 38 ik EL D 38 M 384T
TR o 3 E B EGE P Profit Chain ©

WZF—tE—H+H > KAF - Profit
Chain & A% 2 W) 1 2 % B} 8§ 2 7] Vital Tool
Limited ([ Vital Tool J) &1 32 = J5 W i » %
M o A E] W R EEAT ML 999 B A - DA
WA Vital Tool M8 7R 5652 98 &5 K Profit
ChainZ A4 #%:55,951,401 ¥ G ©

W_ZF—LE—H+/NH » KAFEH
— WU ERE - B > B SFS
9,999,000,000 Ji& 4 B T A 0.01 & JC MY B
iy > A ] B 8 AR B 10,000 9 JC 3 i F
100,000,000 75 ©

WMIERRR —F—LE—H+H/\HBERY
WHEE > AAFR-R—LEHTAH
755 308 1% A A ) B A ¥k 1 HR 19 14,999,990 76
I E A > M Profit Chainlit 8 K& 847 & 3
1,499,999,000 B % i {F 4 J 14 35 48 B ([ % AR
fL#E47]) o

R B o TR 1 OC Z AR AT
500,000,000 Bt 4 B 18 {F0.01 ¥ 7T 14 7 5 48 Jje
> HARAE (B BE 32 A ) %5 550,000,000 #
It o AAT MM —F—LEATHHA
WAL 5 o

25. Gl fi

(a)

AL
AR T A B R A A R I it Al B 3L
BRI AR EB R PR o

£ Bk Al
D i A 4 T AL 2 PR AR o

147



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

148

z & I i # R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oA 5 A e ik
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25. RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Capital reserve

The Group’s capital reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares and the share
premium account of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares and the consideration in exchange
therefor.

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

As at 31 March 2018, the guarantees given
by the Group to certain banks in respect of
performance bonds in favour of certain contract
customers amounted to HK$179,443,000 (2017:
HK$291,836,000).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has given cross
guarantees in favour of certain banks to the extent
of HK$1,385,500,000 in respect of banking facilities
granted by those banks to the Remaining Vantage
Group, of which HK$1,008,379,000 were utilised.

Claims

(i) Personal injuries
In the ordinary course of the Group’s
construction business, the Group has been
subject to a number of claims due to personal
injuries suffered by employees of the Group or the
Group’s sub-contractors in accidents arising out
of and in the course of their employment. The
Directors are of the opinion that such claims are
well covered by insurance and would not result
in any material adverse impact on the financial

position or results and operations of the Group.

B R 2

al

ZFENE=ZH=A—H

25. fifi it (%1)

(c)

YE A it Al

AR T % A 4 i A 55 D 2 ) 7
A T e A b v AR 2 A A A i
15 1 BB A0 ThG EL B Je A i i LA 4 g b
A 2 AR =z 229 -

26. # AR K

(a)

R )\E=ZHA=1—H » REEBR
BT HHTRERZEARET ST
FERAT W HE % %5 179,443,000 70 (=&
—-B4E 1 291,836,000¥70) ©

NoR—LEZA=Z—H - AREEHK
FHT AT TR T B4 46 1 0 SRAT
FBH1,385,500,000 % 70 [ 5% 5 SR 47 1 th
R XAER > HH1,008,379,0003 7T B H)
A o

¥ 141

(i) AZESH
TEASE B 2 H W s R B
ACEE T s A G ) 2 4y T 2 A B
32 A1 $91 ) 28 0 78 A1 DA B0 52 A8 T 1) A
FMRME - EHER R A B R
R ZRGEE - S RREA T
SHAR SR [ 2 A BOIR DL S A M AL
Y GRUE PN Z

Annual Report 2017-2018 FERS



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

2 &R I i2 # R & R 2 3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA5 A e ke

31 March 2018 ZF—NFE=H=4+—H

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(c) Claims (continued)
(ii)) Sub-contractors’ claims
In the ordinary course of the Group’s
construction business, the Group has been
subject to various claims from sub-contractors
from time to time. Provision would be made for
claims when the management assessed and can
reasonably estimate the probable outcome of the
claims. No provision would be made for claims
when the claims cannot be reasonably estimated
or management believes that the probability of

loss is remote.

27. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
As lessee
The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are

negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

26. SARER (5
(c) HE(H)
(ii) AHRHEE
A 2 HH gkl B R
43 ) T A W 1) A 4R 4R & R R
1 o HAEBLIEAE AN 68 A BN
FHR BT REAS R o M IR R
S8 o MARLEAIMHERELH
B B AH £ 40 R T RE AR DS
R HIR R AR -

27. BB KHE
fie B AR ALA
45 O AL A6 L% 2 B AR AL TR A 55
¥ HEWENMEZHEHA T 5=
ﬁﬁo

TR IR > A S AR HR AN T 40 A AL B
IR R B I A I R 2R de A 42 48 B
T

2018 2017

Z®— N\ e S i

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#x Fi#

Within one year —4E N 3,141 5,834
In the second to fifth years, inclusive BOERPHE(BEETRWE) 443 3,506
3,584 9,340
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28. COMMITMENTS 28. k%
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B b SCR R 27 BT ke 1) 468 7 AR B AR A > AR
in note 27 above, the Group had the following capital S E AR R E DTG AR -
commitments at the end of the reporting period:
2018 2017
e 2iC: 2 —R L
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#C F#or
Contracted, but not provided for: ORI AH R B -
Land and buildings b R A 556,740 =
29. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 29. B BLA G B R Mk

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Change in liability arising from financing activities SRR A S

Interest-bearing

bank loans

ah BAUT

HK$’000

Fi

At 1 April 2017 W_ZF—LFENHA—H 50,769

Changes from financing cash flows e Bl I A ) (50,769)

At 31 March 2018 W_F—N\FE=ZH=+—H -
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. BB 5
(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed (a) BB EAL Iy sEMEZ RS
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had T KERRAD > A SR [ FY AR 4R B v B B EL
the following transactions with related parties during AT RHIZ S
the year:
2018 2017
—F N\ — &t
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
A T#0 F#or
Rental payment to the R 24 SR S A A 4 (i)
Remaining Vantage Group 2,640 2,685
Management fee paid to the iR T 245 SR T S A (i)
Remaining Vantage Group HH#H - 65,509
Subcontracting fee income from A H SR PR A E (— R (i)
Covalla Limited, a subsidiary of TRAEHE M Z AR
the Remaining Vantage Group® Y4 A - 54,722
Subcontracting fee income from xR E Hi A R A E (— B (i)
Win Extra Limited, a subsidiary of TRAGEEZ KHE AR )
the Remaining Vantage Group Y 2 S A - 30,700
Interest income from the HEHERT &G EEM (11)
Remaining Vantage Group FlBBA - 235
Interest expense to the kT 25 S E AR (iii)
Remaining Vantage Group F BB 32 - 23
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31 March 2018

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)
Notes:

(i)  These transactions were conducted at terms and conditions
mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

(ii) The interest income was determined at an interest rate with

reference to HIBOR.

(iii)

The interest expenses was determined at an interest rate with
reference to HIBOR.

The Directors are of the opinion that those related
party transactions were conducted in the ordinary

course of business of the Group.

& The related party transactions also constitutes a continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Cross guarantees provided by/to the Remaining
Vantage Group

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Remaining
Vantage Group and the Group received no
consideration for providing these guarantees.
Further details on cross guarantees provided by/to
the Remaining Vantage Group are set out in notes
22 and 26 to the financial statements, respectively.
The Group did not recognise any liabilities in
respect of such financial guarantees as the directors
of the Company consider that the fair values of
these financial guarantee contracts at their initial
recognition and at the end of the reporting period are

insignificant.

All cross guarantees provided by/to the Remaining
Vantage Group were released during the year ended

31 March 2018.

B R 2

al

ZFENE=ZH=A—H

30. B T5 32 5 ()

(a)

(b)

(#1)
Hiat -

(1) AR5 T AR M B R 4 07 5T B 2
Wk BARAFHEAT -

(it) M EBBATI %S % W RATF EHF L
i VAEIES: Vi

A8 BA S T3 45 2 7% A W AT R R B
HERE PR R HE o

(iii)

R o AT R 5 TR AR
H W B f P AT -

o BTy G AR i LR SR 14 AT
REHZ RN 5 o

H1 W BT 28 R B A B X R

REZR-LE=ZH=T—HILFEE >
R T BLAE 4R B oA 4 I 2 e PR AR 43 b
WO - FBIH R T B
R AR R 2 — 2B A 4 Bl AR
A S R B 22 5 26 o AXHE [ S oK
TR AT A R 0h 4 B 0 R L > PRI
A ERER I E B REG R Z AP
L 4] 4 W I B 7 g - 301 oK A T
j(o

H TR T 2847 4R B S 8t 1 BT A 28 XA
RERBEEZF)N\FEZA=+—HIik
A JRE 0 [ 8 it B
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30. BT 5 (%)

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the

(c) 7SR AT A H Wyl 15

Group

2018 2017
ZZ2— N\ —ER LA
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T
Short term employment benefits SHHE B R 16,217 7,780
Post-employment benefits Tl Mk 1% 1 A 126 107

Total compensation paid to AT REEEA B AR
key management personnel 16,343 7,887

The above compensation of key management
personnel excludes the directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration, details of which are set out in note 9 to

the financial statements.

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
All financial assets and liabilities of the Group as at
31 March 2018 and 2017 are loans and receivables, and

financial liabilities at amortised cost, respectively.

32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
deposits and other receivables, other payables and accruals,
amount due to a joint venture and interest-bearing bank
loans approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to

the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing

parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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HH R REATEN B > sE RN T
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include
interest-bearing bank loans, deposits, accounts and
other receivables, accounts and other payables and
bank balances. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial

statements.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised

below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with
floating interest rates.

At 31 March 2018, it was estimated that an increase/
decrease of 25 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by nil
(2017: HK$106,000), respectively, arising as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on the Group’s floating-
rate borrowings. There would be no impact on other

components of the Group’s equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of reporting period. For the purposes of the
analysis, it is assumed that the amounts of variable-rate
borrowings outstanding at the end of reporting period were
outstanding throughout the whole year. The 25 basis point
increase or decrease represents management assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the reporting date of the next financial year.
The analysis was performed on the same basis for the year

ended 31 March 2017.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
balances, accounts receivable and other receivables.
The Group’s maximum credit risk exposure at 31 March
2018 in the event of other parties failing to perform their
obligations is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

Management monitors the creditworthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an ongoing basis.
The Group’s accounts receivable from contract works
represent interim payments or retentions certified by
the customers under terms as stipulated in the contracts
and the Group does not hold any collateral over these
receivables. As the Group’s customers in respect
of contract works primarily consist of government
departments and developers or owners with strong
financial backgrounds, management considers that the
risk of irrecoverable receivables from contract works is not

significant.

At 31 March 2018, the Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as 81% (2017: 51%) and 97% (2017: 72%)
of the total accounts receivable were due from the Group’s
largest external customer and the Group’s five largest
external customers, respectively, within the contract works

segment.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable and
other receivables are disclosed in corresponding notes to

the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and long term. In
addition, banking facilities have been put in place for

contingency purposes.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the

earliest date that the Group could be required to repay:

L 0 4 L Bt ()

RS A S I < b £ R U AR P R
A TR A ORI BB & R (A1
He A [ 1) 2R ol Jig 37 B R R > ARG i o
AR BB AT R A EE R B AT R ) B A4 W]
REZMR M 7 H I 2 51

Within

one year or

In the

In the
third to

on demand second year fifth years Total
—AE M A W =4
FOREGR R4 BRTIAE frat
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T-#7T T#oc TF#oc
As at 31 March 2018 ) 2SS
=Z=H=+—H

Accounts payable JEAT B AR 316,310 16,553 105,308 438,171

Accruals of costs for JRE Gt 4 AR AR
contract works 249,128 = - 249,128

Other payables and accruals At A 5 JE K
(note 21) BB (HfaE21) 23,864 - - 23,864
Due to a joint venture HEAT— 8] & 8 A 2k E 7,313 = = 7,313
596,615 16,553 105,308 718,476
As at 31 March 2017 e S o O
=H=+—H

Interest-bearing bank loans R T &R 51,697 = = 51,697
Accounts payable JEAT B 3 412,682 15,661 55,348 483,691

Accruals of costs for JRE i 4 AR AR
contract works 255 - - 255

Other payables and accruals At A 25 JE K

(note 21) TP (HfaE21) 22,259 - - 22,259
Due to a joint venture FEAT— A8 A Sk 7,313 = = 7,313
494,206 15,661 55,348 565,215
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
policy is to ensure that the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a periodical basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital and will balance the
Group’s overall capital structure through new share issues

as well as raising new debts or repayment of existing debts.

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the equity attributable to
owners of the parent. Net debt includes total interest-
bearing bank loans less cash and bank balances derived
from the consolidated statement of financial position. The
following table analyses the Group’s capital structure as at
31 March 2018:

33. JH L B A B H B B SR (4)

YA G B

A AR 4 PLBOR B0 2 B A B IR AE
T SR B ACHE 2 b A Y B P > AR ACSR
REFF AL > W) I 2 9 J SR [ 4

Aoy I S SR AT o AR AR T
P B —H8 43 - AN ) 55 8 B A K B
AR G A B S > NI 28 008 B AR B
B E AR USR8 BUH > DLPAS:
BB AT

AR I 0 0 D 3 A AR B R (DA 5
BRDLBE AN R A A RS ) BE R AR - 3
B A B SRAT B AR AR B I B IR UL
RZBERBATRE o TRANMAEMR
B )EZH=Z1—HZEARYGE

2018 2017

Z®— N\ —E2 ks

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#x Fi#

Interest-bearing bank loans (note 22) A ESRAT R (M AE22) = 50,769
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 19) W Be MBS E Y MFEL9) (1,185,501) (732,196)
Net cash and bank balances B4 R SRAT RS R AR (1,185,501) (681,427)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BAT A Z A RELS 1,177,143 1,002,172
Net gearing ratio FEARAFILR N/AA % H N/AA 3 H
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34. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 8 January 2018 and 9 February 2018, the Group
had entered into provisional agreements with various
independent third-party property owners (the “Man Shung
Vendors”) to acquire 25/26 shares in total of the Man
Shung Industrial Building located in Kwun Tong at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$619 million.
As at 31 March 2018, prepayments and deposits amounted
to approximately HK$114 million in total were paid to
the Man Shung Vendors. The acquisition constituted a
major transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules and was completed on 12 April 2018. Details
of the transactions are set out in the Company’s circular

dated 28 March 2018.

34. WA BB H

B NE-ANHEZZ-NEZAL
H - ARG 5y 31 B2 % 2 8 S 58 =07 (T % 8
WSS 5 1) WV S I B S o AR £ 7 B
VBN 38 K B L2526 > RUREEAY
6.19M&¥#I - R_F—~NFE=HA=+—H >
BILH L1480 B T AT ROE ek & BT
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  35. A2 wl /M BHR L%

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

A R A 2 T S I AR A B B R 0 A Y R
W

2018 2017
ZEB— N\ —F L
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x Fi#
NON-CURRENT ASSETS e B A
Investments in subsidiaries B A =) BB 55,951 55,951
CURRENT ASSETS B A
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables VAT AR IE ~ F 4 Ko oAt HE ek 2,592 337
Due from a subsidiary JRE W — ] B Jeg 2 W) ik 0B 152,596 148,522
Cash and cash equivalents BREeRBRE%MY 372,424 376,594
Total current assets VB G Al 527,612 525,453
CURRENT LIABILITIES W AR
Other payables and accruals JU Al A kT e PR B 830 1,120
NET CURRENT ASSETS it B A A 526,782 524,333
Net assets BT 582,733 580,284
EQUITY 2
Share capital TR A 20,000 20,000
Reserves (note) b5 (M aE) 562,733 560,284
Total equity HARERR 582,733 580,284
NGAI Chun Hung IP Yik Nam
B LYY ]
Director Director
HH HH
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31 March 2018 ZF—NEFE=H=1—H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  35. A2 ) iy B BR P 7 (4)

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: et -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARA T REHREE T ¢
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
It B it 61 Bl s ik
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#oc Fitoc F#oc
At 11 July 2016 W —AELH+—H
(date of incorporation) (G H 3 - - -
Loss and total comprehensive loss 391 PN s 4 B 2 i e 1 48
for the period - (14,201) (14,201)
Issue of new shares pursuant to MR VR AL AT T
the Reorganisation 55,951 = 55,951
Capitalisation Issue BARAL BT (15,000) = (15,000)
Issue of new shares pursuant to FRLIR e 0y % 15 B 47307 It
the Share Offer 545,000 = 545,000
Share issues expenses W BT B X (11,466) = (11,466)
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 R_Z-tHE=ZA=+—HK
—R—-tFEWH—H 574,485 (14,201) 560,284
Loss and total comprehensive loss AR 1A Jl 4R S 2 T e TR A
for the year = 2,449 2,449
At 31 March 2018 HER- ) E=ZA=Z1—H 574,485 (11,752) 562,733
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 36. BB R Z Atk
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for KRB REFCOR F—-NENATHE
issue by the board of directors on 22 June 2018. P 7 2 A o I 2 RE AT o
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